
           

C I T Y  O F  F O R T  P I E R C E
 

CITY COMMISSION AGENDA
 

Regular Meeting - Tuesday, January 21, 2014 - 6:30 p.m.
City Hall - City Commission Chambers, 100 North U.S. #1, Fort Pierce, Florida
             

1. CALL TO ORDER
 

2. OPENING PRAYER - Father John Liebler, St. Andrew's Episcopal Church
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

4. ROLL CALL
 

5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES - January 6, 2014 Meeting
 

6. PROCLAMATIONS
 

7. LETTERS TO COMMISSION
 

a.   Letter from Roy Whitehead, President, Treasure Coast Youth Sailing Foundation,
commending Libby Woodruff, grant writer, for sharing her experience, knowledge
and guidance as they were writing their application for CDBG grant funds. 

 

b.   Letter from Roy Whitehead thanking Chief Sean Baldwin for serving as a guest
speaker at the Fort Pierce Yacht Club.  

 

c.   Letter from Blades Robinson commending the City Manager and City staff members
for their leadership, friendliness, knowledge and "can do" attitude as he was
deciding whether to invest in the City of Fort Pierce.  He is now a proud tax-paying
citizen.

 

8. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC
Any person who wishes to comment on any subject which is not under Public Hearings on the Agenda may be
heard at this time. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes or less, as directed by the Mayor, as this
section of the Agenda is limited to thirty minutes. The City Commission will not be able to take any official actions
under Comments from the Public. Speakers will address the Mayor, Commissioners, and the Public with respect.
Inappropriate language will not be tolerated.

-----
ANY PERSON SEEKING TO APPEAL ANY DECISION BY THE CITY COMMISSION
WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING IS ADVISED
THAT A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS IS REQUIRED IN ANY SUCH APPEAL AND

  



THAT SUCH PERSON MAY NEED TO INSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF
THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE INCLUDING THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE
UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.

 

9. CONSENT AGENDA
 

a.   Approval of 2014 CDBG Public Service Agency Funding Recommendations.  
The Communitywide Council evaluated sixteen (16) PSA grant applications,
recommended funding for eleven (11), in the amount of $70,000. This amount
was previously approved in the PY 2013-2014 CDBG Annual Action Plan
($70,000).

 

b.   Approval of Change Order No. 6 in the amount of $197,483.30 for SR A1A Phase I
Improvements with Dickerson Florida, Inc.  PO No. 110671 - Ref. Bid No. 6008.

 

c.   Request for a one (1) year for Site Plan and Conditional Use Extension for Mount
Bethel Baptist Church - South 25th Street, east of Fort Pierce Central High School.
Approval of this item will grant the applicant a new site plan approval through
January 21, 2015.

 

d.   Approval of request to waive administrative fees in the amount of $100 for a Lot
Clearing Lien totaling $350 against 810 N. 4th Street, owned by Theresa and Jerry
L. Wilson, contingent upon payment of $250.

 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS
 

a.   Ordinance No: 14-001 - Application for Alleyway Abandonment - American Legion
Post 40 - 810 South US Highway 1. SECOND READING.

 

b.   Ordinance No: 14-002; An Ordinance of the City Commission of the City of Fort
Pierce, Florida amending Chapter 13, POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT TRUST
FUND. FIRST READING

 

11. MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS & REQUESTS
 

a.   Building Department Click-2-Gov Presentation in an effort to educate the public on
the Building Department permit portal.

 

b.   City Marina Reconstruction Update
 

c.   Monthly update of the City of Fort Pierce Solid Waste Division's Single Stream
Recycling Program.

 

d.   Highwaymen Heritage Trail Project Presentation
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f.   Financial Report for Quarter Ending December 31, 2013
 

12. CITY COMMISSION
 

a.   Submittal of Applications for appointment to the Communitywide Council to fill one
(1) regular member vacancy.

 

b.   Submittal of Applications for reappointment to the Board of Examiners of Contractors
 

c.   Submittal of Applications to the Board of Examiners of Contractors to fill one
vacancy.

 

d.   Submittal of Applications for reappointment to the Construction Board of
Adjustments and Appeals.

 

e.   Ratification of 2014 Board and Committee appointments for Mayor and
Commissioners

 

f.   Resolution 14-R01 re-appointing James H. Brown to the Housing Authority Board.
 

g.   Resolution 14-R02 Supporting Grant Application to Visit Florida to cover the design
and printing costs of tourism brochures.

 

h.   Resolution 14-R03 Supporting Grant Application to Dr. Pepper Snapple Keep
America Beautiful (DPS-KAB) to provide recycling bins for City parks.

 

13. COMMENTS FROM THE CITY MANAGER
 

a.   Department Activity Report
 

14. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION
 

15. ADJOURNMENT
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City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   5.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re:

SUBJECT:
APPROVAL OF MINUTES - January 6, 2014 Meeting

Attachments
01.06.2014 Minutes



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA, HELD IN THE CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 100 
NORTH U.S. #1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA, AT 6:30 P.M. ON MONDAY, JANUARY 6, 
2014.

1. Mayor Hudson called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. Pastor Mary Carroll, Foundation Revival Center Church of Redemption offered 
the opening prayer.

3. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

4. Upon Roll Call, those present were:  Mayor Linda Hudson; Commissioners Rufus 
Alexander, Edward Becht and Thomas Perona. 

Staff present were: City Manager Robert Bradshaw; City Attorney Robert Schwerer; and 
City Clerk Linda Cox.  

Those absent:  Reginald Sessions.

Motion was made by Commissioner Becht, seconded by Commissioner Perona to 
excuse Commissioner Reginald Sessions.

Those voting in favor of the motion were:  Commissioners Alexander, Becht, Perona 
and Mayor Hudson.  Those opposed:  None.
-----
5. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 16, 2013.

Motion was made by Commissioner Becht, seconded by Commissioner Perona, to 
approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on December 16, 2013.

Those voting in favor of the motion were:  Commissioners Alexander, Becht, Perona
and Mayor Hudson.  Those opposed:  None.
-----
6. Mayor Hudson issued a Proclamation recognizing January as National Mentoring 
Month.  It was received by Sabrina Seme, Volunteer Recruiter, Big Brothers big Sisters.
-----
7. The following letters will be kept on file in the City Clerk's Office:

a. Letter from Main Street Fort Pierce thanking the City for their support of the 25th

Annual Sights and Sounds on Second Festival and Parade, “Silver Christmas 
Jubilee” and commending the Fort Pierce Police Department, Public Works and 
Kiwanis Club for their hard work.

b. Letter from Chris Dzadovsky, St. Lucie County Commissioner, thanking Michelle 
Kubitschek, Fort Pierce River Walk Center, for her assistance with the Open Air 
Environmental Forum held November 2nd, 2013.

-----
8. Comments from the Public.

Mr. Roy Darby, 619 South 6th Street 
Mr. John Divas, 5242 Compass Cove Place
Mr. Patrick Henry, 1123 Granada Street
Ms. Bonnie Howard, Lakewood Park
Rev. John Lee, 1204 Avenue K
Ms. Renee Jordan Wyatt, 2017 Avenue D
Mr. Richard Silvestri, 5708 Buchanan Drive

-----
9. Consent Agenda.  

Motion was made by Commissioner Perona, seconded by Commissioner Becht, that the 
following items on the Consent Agenda be approved:
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a. Approval of Modification Number One to Subgrant Agreement No. 14HM-2Y-10-
66-02-144 between the Division of Emergency Management and the City of Fort 
Pierce for expansion of the scope of work to retrofit additional buildings with 
impact resistant glass on all exterior windows and doors; extending the period of 
performance from February 1, 2014 to August 1, 2014.

b. Approval of Interlocal Agreement between the City of Fort Pierce, City of Port St. 
Lucie, Martin County and St. Lucie County for construction of sixteen (16) bus 
shelters along the US 1 corridor, funded through a FDOT grant.

c. Approval of a reduction in code enforcement lien in the amount of $422,270.00 to 
$500.00 on property owned by Gayle F. Jones, at 2405 Avenue D, Fort Pierce, 
FL as recommended by the Special Magistrate.

d. Approval of a request for application fee waiver for a zoning atlas amendment 
from I-1 to I-3 for property located at 4100 Glades Road and owned by Diamond 
R Fertilizer Co.  

Those voting in favor of the motion were:  Commissioners Alexander, Becht, Perona
and Mayor Hudson.  Those opposed:  None.
-----
10.   Public Hearing 

10 a. ORDINANCE NO. 14-001, an Ordinance by the City Commission of the 
City of Fort Pierce, Florida, abandoning a portion of an existing 20 foot alleyway, lying 
adjacent and easterly of Lot 15 and the north 10 feet of Lot 16, Block 8, Pinewood 
Subdivision within the City of Fort Pierce, Florida; Providing for the reservation of a
Utility Easement for all utility purposes unto the City of Fort Pierce, Florida; Repealing 
all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith; and providing for an effective 
date. (FIRST READING)

Ms. Rebecca Grohall, Planning Manager, appeared with a recommendation for 
approval.

Mayor Hudson opened the Public Hearing.

Seeing no one, the Mayor closed the public hearing.

Motion was made by Commissioner Becht, seconded by Commissioner Alexander to 
approve Ordinance No. 14-001, abandoning a portion of existing 20 foot alleyway, lying 
adjacent and easterly of Lot 15 and the north 10 feet of Lot 16, Block 8, Pinewood 
Subdivision within the City of Fort Pierce, Florida.

Those voting in favor of the motion were:  Commissioners Alexander, Becht, Perona
and Mayor Hudson.  Those opposed:  None.

-----
10 b. Notice of Appeal submitted on behalf of Richard A Coke Investments LLC 

of a decision made by the Historic Preservation Board on October 28, 2013 to approve 
a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA 13-43) issued for 131 N 2nd Street with the 
following condition:   Replacement of the roofing system must be done with the 
appropriate clay barrel tile system to match the original match the old in design, color, 
and texture. The relief sought is the amendment of the decision of the Board to allow 
the installation of the concrete roofing materials requested by the owner and 
representative.

Mr. Kori Benton, Historic Preservation Officer, appeared with a presentation outlining 
the details of the appeal.  

Commissioner Perona addressed the economic issue and/or cost factor for this request, 
asking if there is a procedure where the issue can be looked at from the economical 
aspect rather than just functional. He stated that had the Historic Preservation Board 
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seen the whole scope, heard from representatives and addressed the security issues 
that it probably would not be before commission. He asked if there was a process for 
economic hardship. Kori Benton stated that per guidelines of the Board there is a 
process that provides an applicant the ability to provide documentation and plead their 
case to the board to consider the economic aspects of their decision.  He asked if this 
had been done in the past, Kori stated that it had.

Commissioner Alexander expressed concern about the public safety issue of falling tile. 
He questioned if the repairs were urgent. Kori stated that there is some damage and
that this was brought to the city’s attention in September.  Commissioner Alexander 
made comment on the length of time the process had taken for the owners . 

Commissioner Becht questioned the type of tiles currently on the City of Fort Pierce’s 
parking garage.  Kori Benton stated that per Danny Hawkins, Deputy Building Official, 
the tiles are clay as per city plans.  Commissioner Becht also asked if there were 
anything other than aesthetics that justifies doubling the cost to the property owner. He 
states he is disinclined to return this request back to the Board but does not want to 
make a precedent that future cases will be appealed to the Commission seeking relief 
from a decision of the Historic Preservation Board.

Mayor Hudson opened the Public Hearing.

Mr. Richard A. Coke appeared and stated that his biggest concern has been with the 
length of time this process has taken, that if someone gets killed, hurt or maimed that he 
will lose his lively-hood. He stated that he thought that staff had the ability to approve 
the request based on a public safety issue and that it didn’t have to go to the Historic 
Preservation Board.

Ms. Christine Coke appeared and stated that this is a public safety issue. 

Mr. Rick Reed appeared and spoke on behalf of the applicant.  He requested that the 
city do the right thing and not to delay their decision.

Seeing no one else, the Mayor closed the public hearing.

City Attorney Rob Schwerer requested that it be documented in the record from the 
applicant or from a representative of the roofing company the cost difference.  

Mayor Hudson re-opened the Public Hearing.

Ms. Christine Coke submitted that there is a written estimate from J.A. Taylor Roofing 
stating that the repair cost for the clay tiles is $37,300 versus $13,800 for the concrete.  

Commissioner Becht made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Alexander to reverse 
the Historic Preservation Board’s decision and to allow the installation of the concrete 
roofing materials requested by the owner and representative due to the economic 
hardship that they presented tonight.

After further discussion Commissioner Becht moved to amend his motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Alexander to include the urgency for public safety.

Those voting in favor of the motion were:  Commissioners Alexander, Becht, Perona 
and Mayor Hudson.  Those opposed:  None.
-----

10 c. - Notice of Appeal submitted by Mr. David Cleveland.  The relief sought is 
the reversal of the Historic Preservation Board’s decision to deny the Certificate of 
Appropriateness for replacement of original and non-original windows at Old City Hall 
and St. Anastasia School Building.   (CONTINUED FROM 12/16/2013)

Motion was made by Commissioner Becht, seconded by Commissioner Alexander to 
continue the Notice of Appeal to the February 3, 2014 meeting.  
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Those voting in favor of the motion were:  Commissioners Alexander, Becht, Perona 
and Mayor Hudson.  Those opposed:  None.
-----
11. Miscellaneous Reports & Requests

-----
12. City Commission

a. Selection of Mayor Pro Tem

Motion made by Commission Alexander, seconded by Commissioner Perona to select 
Commissioner Becht as Mayor Pro Tem.

Those voting in favor of the motion were:  Commissioners Alexander, Becht, Perona
and Mayor Hudson.  Those opposed:  None.
-----
13. Comments from the City manager

14. Comments from the Commission:

Commissioner Perona attended the 31st Anniversary of the Bridge-buster this weekend 
and he was excited to see that about 160 participants along with family attended.  He 
was pleased that the Kiwanis Club was able to make around $3000 and complimented 
the Riverwalk Center for their assistance, stating that they were a great help.

Commissioner Alexander asked Chief of Police, Sean Baldwin, about his meeting with 
the NAACP as reported in the paper and if the City has any African-American 
supervisors on the street.  Chief Baldwin indicated that a report on the issue is 
forthcoming.

Commissioner Becht stated that FPUA recently lowered their Power Cost Adjustment
about $2.  He also asked staff the Actuarial Study Report would be available.  Gloria 
Johnson responded that it would be within the next 60 days.  He also requested an 
update on the King Power Plant and on the Moore’s Creek Seawall from City Manager 
Robert Bradshaw.

Mayor Hudson also commented on the FPUA stating that the Power Cost Adjustment 
(PCA) was lowered $2 in November and $2 additional in January for a total of $4 so the 
PCA will be down to $1. She wanted everyone to know that the St Lucie Pioneer 
Families Exhibit opens Saturday, January 18th, from 10 am to4 pm at the St. Lucie 
Regional History Center with a history trolley tour.  She commented to Commissioner 
Alexander that his family was one of the families featured at this event.  Mayor Hudson 
said how pleased she was that Fort Pierce Central had a great year in football and that 
they are now an A school.  She was excited to say that Fort Pierce now has two A-listed 
schools, the only two in the county.
-----
15. Adjournment.  

There being no further business, Mayor Hudson declared the meeting adjourned at 8:05
p.m.
-----

ATTEST:

______________________________     _____________________________
CITY CLERK MAYOR COMMISSIONER

Video of January 6, 2014 City Commission Meeting:
http://fortpiercefl.swagit.com/play/01062014-703



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   7. a.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Letter from Roy Whitehead

SUBJECT:
Letter from Roy Whitehead, President, Treasure Coast Youth Sailing Foundation, commending
Libby Woodruff, grant writer, for sharing her experience, knowledge and guidance as they were
writing their application for CDBG grant funds. 

Attachments
TC Youth Sailing





   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   7. b.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Letter from Roy Whitehead

SUBJECT:
Letter from Roy Whitehead thanking Chief Sean Baldwin for serving as a guest speaker at the
Fort Pierce Yacht Club.  

Attachments
Whitehead





   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   7. c.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Leter from Blades Robinson

SUBJECT:
Letter from Blades Robinson commending the City Manager and City staff members for their
leadership, friendliness, knowledge and "can do" attitude as he was deciding whether to invest
in the City of Fort Pierce.  He is now a proud tax-paying citizen.

Attachments
Robinson Letter









   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   9. a.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: 2014 CDBG Public Service Agency Funding Recommendations
Submitted For: Libby Woodruff, Grant Writer, Urban Redevelopment 

SUBJECT:
Approval of 2014 CDBG Public Service Agency Funding Recommendations.  
The Communitywide Council evaluated sixteen (16) PSA grant applications,
recommended funding for eleven (11), in the amount of $70,000. This amount was
previously approved in the PY 2013-2014 CDBG Annual Action Plan ($70,000).

SUMMARY:
See Subject Above.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Commission approve the Communitywide Council
recommendations for eleven (11) PY 2013-2014 CDBG Public Service Agency grants for a total
amount of $70,000 and to direct the Mayor to execute Agreements with each successful
applicant, subject to the approval of form and correctness by the City Attorney.

ALTERNATIVES:
Do not approve the Communitywide Council recommendations.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Nicholas Mimms, Deputy City Manager; Libby Woodruff, Grants Administrator

COORDINATED WITH:
Communitywide Council; Finance Department

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
There is no fiscal impact.

Attachments
PSA Scores and Recommendations
PSA Scoring and Award Recap
Cover Memo - PSA Grant Awards





16 Applications Received   /   11 Recipients   /   $70,000 in Grant Awards

Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score

Communitywide 
Council Members

Alpha Kappa 
Alpha 

Sorority, Inc.

Boys and 
Girls Club of 

SLC

Children’s 
Home 

Society of FL

Circle of 
Life Ed 
Center

Community 
Outreach 

Youth 
Program

Dream 
Vision 

TV, LLC

Empowering 
Special 

Treasures, 
Inc.

PAL –
Pop 

Warner

PAL –
PAL 

Programs

Future 
Generations 

of SLC

In the 
Image of 

Christ

Kingdom 
Harvest / 
Harvest 
Food &

Outreach 
Center

Lamplighter’s 
Youth Group

Mt. Bethel 
Human Services

Corp., Inc.

Treasure 
Coast Youth 

Sailing 
Association

Zion’s 
Daughters of 
Distinction 
Ministries

Edward Cox 56 80 92 72 49 75 75 83 75 76 72 84 55 74 61 87

Al Maige 50 79 72 33 57 39 75 0 0 80 51 75 51 95 86 95

Ellen Mancini 65 95 92 30 65 45 80 50 80 82 70 99 80 80 100 98

Leon Porter 96 95 97 80 87 86 95 100 99 90 94 98 94 98 97 99

Hassie Russ 75 70 95 0 72 72 97 0 98 85 97 97 85 92 98 98

Eric Seibenick 65 99 97 43 62 45 71 95 68 48 65 99 59 96 95 96

CUMULATIVE 
SCORES

67.84 86.34 90.84 43 65.34 60.34 82.17 54.67 70 76.84 74.84 92 70.67 89.17 89.5 95.5

Requested 
Amount $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $5,000 $10,000 $10,000 $9,500 $9,000 $10,000 $10,000

CWC 
RECOMMENDED 
GRANT AWARDS

$0 $7,000 $8,500 $0 $0 $0 $7,000 $0 $6,000 $3,500 $4,500 $9,500 $2,500 $6,500 $5,500 $9,500

Public Service PY 2013-2014 Grant Opportunity

Communitywide Council Cumulative Scores and Recommended Grant Awards



 City of Fort Pierce – Public Service Grant Application and Award Recap 
Available PY 2013-2014 CDBG Funding for Public Services - $70,000 

 

 

 

APPLICANT PROJECT/PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Requested 

Amount 
CWC 

Recommendation 

Alpha Kappa Alpha 

Sorority, Inc. – ‘Precious 

Pearls Youth Group’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 to take 47 youth on a college tour and 

capitol crusade, which will include the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Memorial 

and either the White House or Capitol in Washington, DC and college 

campuses in Tallahassee, Valdosta and Atlanta Georgia and Columbia South 

Carolina between March 24 and March 28, 2014 

$10,000 $0 

Boys & Girls Club of SLC – 

‘Triple Play Game Plan for 

Mind, Body and Soul’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 to provide a program that will educate 

approximately 50 youth about good nutrition, making physical fitness a 

daily practice and develop individual strengths and good character. 
$10,000 $7,000 

Children’s Home Society of 

Florida, Treasure Coast 

Division – ‘Life Skills 

Enhancement’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 for the Wave C.R.E.S.T. Shelter, the only 

emergency/homeless shelter for youth between the ages of 11-17 to 

transform a screened in porch with plexi-glass sliding windows into an 

insulated room with A/C where they will implement life skills activities. Will 

include physical exercise, obstacle course, education relating to managing 

personal affairs and handling problems encountered in daily living, including 

conflict resolution, bullying prevention, family violence prevention for 135 

youth and their families. 

$10,000 $8,500 

Circle of Life Educational 

Center, Inc. – “Afterschool 

Program” 

This organization seeks $10,000 to provide tuition assistance for 50 local 

children to attend afterschool care at their facility. 
$10,000 $0 

Community Outreach 

Youth Program – ‘2014 

Spring Break Camp’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 to provide Spring Break Camp to 25 youth 

to help deter the spread of gangs/gang violence; STD’s, teen pregnancy, 

and negative and/or criminal activity during the week that youth will be out 

of school for Spring Break – March 22-28, 2014. 

$10,000 $0 

Dream Vision, TV, LLC – 

‘Dream Vision TV’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 to provide free cable TV through the most 

affordable means which is cell phones and mobile devices for 500 youth and 

households. 
$10,000 $0 

Empowering Special 

Treasures, Inc. – 

‘Empowering Special 

Treasures’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 for after-school tutoring, academic 

support, socialization and career development for 20 special needs 

individuals.  The program will promote cultural diversity, outdoor activities 

and a healthy lifestyle, spur interest and creativity and improve or enhance 

educational activities, and assist students with behavior modification and 

career development. 

$10,000 $7,000 

Fort Pierce Police Athletic 

League (PAL) ‘Pop Warner 

Eagles Football and 

Cheerleading’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 to provide fun, athletic learning 

opportunities for children, while emphasizing the importance of academic 

success, specifically familiarizing approximately 250 youth on the 

fundamentals of football, cheerleading and dance. 

$10,000 $0 

..continued on back 



 City of Fort Pierce – Public Service Grant Application and Award Recap 
Available PY 2013-2014 CDBG Funding for Public Services - $70,000 

 

 

 

APPLICANT PROJECT/PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Requested 

Amount 
CWC 

Recommendation 

Fort Piece Police Athletic 

League (PAL) – ‘PAL 

Programs’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 to support its numerous programs, which 

include boxing, ballet, mentoring, basketball, summer camp, flag football, 

T-ball, field trips, and youth leadership activities for 60 youth. 
$10,000 $6,000 

Future Generations of St. 

Lucie County – ‘Music 

Drumline Program’ 

This organization seeks $5,000 to provide quality music lessons, musical 

software, musical instruments and various field trips for approximately 50 

youth. 
$5,000 $3,500 

In the Image of Christ, 

Inc. – ‘Jack’s Food Pantry’ 

This organization seeks $9,600 to support Jack’s Food Pantry and help 

provide food for over 400 local individuals on a weekly basis. 
$10,000 $4,500 

Kingdom Harvest d/b/a 

Harvest Food & Outreach 

Center – ‘Family Food for 

Thought’  

This organization seeks $10,000 to promote outdoor activities and a healthy 

lifestyle, and increase educational enrichment opportunities for 225 

underserved youth. 
$10,000 $9,500 

Lamplighter’s Youth Group 

– ‘College Tour / Black 

History Educational 

Excursion’ 

This organization seeks $9,500 to take between 20-30 youth on a trip to 

visit universities and Black historical sites in Tallahassee, Tuskegee, 

Montgomery, Birmingham and Atlanta from March 24-28, 2014. 
$9,500 $2,500 

Mount Bethel Human 

Services Corporation, Inc. 

– ‘Cutting EDGE Youth’ – 

‘Doing the Right Thing’ 

2014 Community Outreach 

Campaign 

This organization seeks $9,000 to provide youth and family activities 

including ‘Youth Blanket Sock Hop’, outreach feed homeless and give away 

blankets, college/historical tour, and county-wide Baccalaureate program 

and breakfast, FCAT Prep Camp, Community Father’s Day Bowl, Back 2 

School Workshop/Parent Jam – which will all together serve approximately 

500 youth, 100 homeless individuals and 150 families. 

$9,000 $6,500 

Treasure Coast Youth 

Sailing Foundation, Inc. – 

‘TCYSF Program 

Expansion’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 to assist with the renovation and enclosure 

of the pavilion at Jaycee Park which will expand their capabilities to house 

six additional sailboats and provide twelve (12) sailing camp scholarships to 

underprivileged youth each year. 

$10,000 $5,500 

Zion’s Daughters of 

Distinction Ministries –   

‘J-E-W-E-L-S Program’ 

This organization seeks $10,000 to conduct the J.E.W.E.L.S. (Juveniles 

entering wellness, education, leadership and success) – Continuous 6-week 

intervention, prevention and diversion programs with graduation and 

completion certificate at the completion of the program and continuous 

mentoring and parental follow-up that will serve more than 100 youth and 

2,000 families during the program year. 

$10,000 $9,500 

 

TOTALS $153,500 $70,000 
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DEPARTMENT OF URBAN REDEVELOPMENT
CITY HALL, 100 NORTH U.S. 1

P.O. BOX 1480
FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34954-1480

TEL (772) 467.3000
FAX (772) 595.5068            

     www.cityoffortpierce.com

To: Honorable Mayor and City Commissioners

From: Libby Woodruff, Administrator

Thru: Robert Bradshaw, City Manager

Re: Communitywide Council Recommendations for CDBG Public Service Agency
Grant Awards

Date: January 9, 2014

CC:  Nick Mimms, Gloria Johnson, Communitywide Council

The Communitywide Council (CWC) individually reviewed and scored then came together at a 
regularly-scheduled meeting on January 8 to discuss and make recommendations for funding 
Public Service Agency (PSA) grants for PY 2013-14.

Attached please find a brief overview of all sixteen PSA grant applications that were received, 
including project descriptions and the proposed number of the individuals that could be 
positively affected, the amount of funding requested in each application, and the scores and 
award amounts recommended by the CWC. The Council denied the requests of five 
applicants.

The approved PY 2013-14 CDBG Annual Action Plan lists $76,000 for this purpose.  

Staff recommends that the City Commission approve of the recommendations of the 
Communitywide Council and fund the eleven recommended 2013-14 PSA grant requests, in 
the amount of $70,000 and direct the Mayor to execute Agreements with each successful 
applicant, subject to the approval of form and correctness by the City Attorney.



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   9. b.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Dickerson Change Order No. 6 - SR A1A Phase I
Submitted For: John Andrews, City Engineer, Engineering 

SUBJECT:
Approval of Change Order No. 6 in the amount of $197,483.30 for SR A1A Phase I
Improvements with Dickerson Florida, Inc.  PO No. 110671 - Ref. Bid No. 6008.

SUMMARY:
This request will provide compensation for the milling, resurfacing and striping of both Binney
Drive and Hernando Drive.  These two roads were utilized as main detour routes during the SR
A1A Phase I construction.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Change Order No. 6 in the amount of $196,483.30.

ALTERNATIVES:
Deny the request.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Engineering Department

COORDINATED WITH:
FDOT

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N: N/A
Fiscal Year: N/A
Account: 40343005386320
Amount: $197,483.30

FISCAL IMPACT:
The $197,483.30 will initially be encumbered by SMU Bond No. 2, Account No.
403-4300-538-6320, with reimbursement by FDOT in accordance with the Joint Participation
Agreement.

Attachments
C:\Users\Tracy\Desktop\Memo to CC 012114 - Dickerson Revised CO No. 6 - 010614 











   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   9. c.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Site Plan & Conditional Use Extension - MBBC
Submitted For: Rebecca Grohall, Planning & Zoning Manager, Planning & Zoning 

SUBJECT:
Request for a one (1) year for Site Plan and Conditional Use Extension for Mount Bethel Baptist
Church - South 25th Street, east of Fort Pierce Central High School. Approval of this item will
grant the applicant a new site plan approval through January 21, 2015.

SUMMARY:
On January 22, 2013, the City Commission approved a Site Plan and Conditional Use to
construct a 12,000 square foot church with five (5) conditions.
The applicant is requesting an extension in order to finalize several of the original
Conditions of Approval.
The applicant has already applied for a “site work” building permit and will be submitting
an application for a commercial building permit in the near future.
Per Section 22-58(j) of the City Code, extensions “of time” may be granted by the City
Commission prior to the expiration of a Site Plan upon a showing of good cause and when
such extension will promote public health, safety and general welfare.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the extension request.

ALTERNATIVES:
Deny the extension request.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Ryan Sweeney, MSP, Senior Planner

COORDINATED WITH:
N/A

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
None.

Attachments



Attachments
City Commission Minutes from January 22, 2013
Extension Request Letter
Letter of Authorization
Update to Traffic Statement
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in State Court.  Both of those cases she has competent legal 

counsel representing her.  Those cases are being litigated in a 

court of law according to the rules of the court of law.  And 

any claims she has against the City have been raised in those 

cases and will be adjudicated by a jury or a judge.  It is 

outside their hands at this point in time because she has chosen 

to take her case to the courts of the United States of America, 

Southern District of Florida, and the Circuit Court of the 19th 

Judicial Circuit.  Those cases remain active.  They simply can't 

deal with something that another jurisdiction has already been 

chosen by the complaining party to handle. 

----- 

The next item on the Agenda was Public Hearing on Application 

for Conditional Use & Site Plan submitted by Clarence E. Glover 

for construction of Mount Bethel Baptist Church to be located on 

South 25th Street, east of Fort Pierce Central High School; said 

property zoned R-1, Single Family Low Density Residential Zone. 

 

Mr. Ryan Sweeney, Development Review Planner, said this is an 

application for Site Plan and Conditional Use to construct a 

12,000 square foot church on a parcel located on South 25th 

Street just east of Fort Pierce Central High School.  The parcel 

is zoned R-1, Single Family Low Density.  This is the same 

church structure that has been approved twice by the City 

Commission in the past; both of those instances at a previous 

location on South 37th Street.  A total of 14 notifications were 

sent via mail to property owners within 500 feet of the subject 

parcel.  As of today, a total of 4 have been received - 2 

approve, 1 disapproves, and 1 is a no vote from the St. Lucie 

County School District, who said they had no concerns.  He also 

received correspondence tonight as he was walking into this 

meeting via a County Commissioner.  County Commissioner Frannie 

Hutchinson, representing one of the unincorporated citizens who 

lives outside the 500 foot notification distance, Carol and 

William Bradshaw, who also disapprove. 

 

Commissioner Alexander asked if individuals live in the 

unincorporated section, what does that have to do with the City 

of Fort Pierce? 

 

Mr. Sweeney said the City Code requires that property owners, 

regardless of whether they are in the City or the County, 

receive notice by mail within 500 feet of the subject parcel.  

Property owners outside of that area would not receive notice.  

At the December 11, 2012 meeting, the Planning Board voted 

unanimously to recommend approval of the Site Plan and 

Conditional Use with staff-recommended conditions. Therefore, as 

the proposed Site Plan and Conditional Use meets the 

requirements of the City Code and is found to be consistent with 

the City's Comprehensive Plan, Staff recommends approval of the 

Site Plan and Conditional Use with the following conditions:  

(1) The applicant shall record the St. Lucie County requested 

right-of-way dedication within 90 days of Site Plan approval; 

(2) The applicant shall enter into a Road Improvement Agreement 

with St. Lucie County within 90 days of Site Plan approval; (3) 

The applicant shall complete all of the required off-site 

improvements prior to the issuance of a Certificate of 

Occupancy; (4) The applicant shall remove all listed exotic 

plant species from the project limits in accordance with Section 
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22-187(1)(e) of the City Code prior to the issuance of a 

Certificate of Occupancy; and (5) The applicant shall have a 

formal gopher tortoise survey completed prior to the issuance of 

a Building Permit or any other site disturbance permit. 

 

Commissioner Becht said Mr. Sweeney mentioned a County 

Commissioner.  The County hasn't taken a position here? 

 

Mr. Sweeney said the residents reached out to their County 

Commissioner, who then sent an email. 

 

Commissioner Becht said but the County hasn't taken a position. 

 

Mr. Sweeney said no. 

 

Commissioner Becht said they have a Joint Planning Agreement 

with the County where they show each other their projects. 

 

Mr. Sweeney said absolutely.  St. Lucie County Planning & Zoning 

sits on the TRC (Technical Review Committee).  They had no 

objections. 

 

Mayor Hudson asked but the resident that reached out is in the 

500 feet? 

 

Mr. Sweeney said no, they are outside the 500 foot notification 

requirement. 

 

Commissioner Sessions asked the conditions that have been 

recommended by Staff, does the applicant have any problems with 

that? 

 

Mr. Sweeney said they have agreed to all of the conditions that 

Staff has recommended. 

 

Mayor Hudson declared a Public Hearing in session and asked if 

anyone in the audience wished to be heard. 

 

Ms. Kate Alvira, 2291 Sweetwater Drive, said they are to the 

north of this proposed development.  What separates them is the 

Sweetwater Hammock, owned by the County.  She is within 500 feet 

as her house sits at the very end of the road, so they did give 

her a paper to attend the meeting about this proposal.  Has 

anybody heard of Sweetwater or seen it in the news?  After any 

major hurricane or tropical storm, they are flooded, four feet 

of water.  Luckily when the developer built their neighborhood, 

it sits up high enough, their homes do not flood, but their 

garages do.  It comes in for a lot of different reasons.  One 

is, Gordy Spillway is let loose, it comes down and comes into 

their road.  The canoe launch is another way it comes into that 

property.  They are in a flood plain.  The reason that property 

is zoned Residential Low Density, she believes, is because of 

the flooding.  If they start putting all that asphalt and 

concrete and buildings in there, what is going to happen?  When 

they built the school and built the development across from 

them, they are now seeing water coming in off of 25th Street.  

Now they are going to build a church?  She has nothing against 

that.  But what else are they going to build?  That is why she 

would like to look into - why is it low density?  Because it is 
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going to affect them adversely with the water coming off their 

pavement and flooding them.  They need to protect their 

neighborhood, they are taxpayers.  They have been working with 

Frannie Hutchinson on this problem and she is involved because 

that is the County; but that property is actually considered 

City.  They were told by the Commissioners they had no idea 

about this.  So she thinks a little bit more investigating has 

to be done. 

 

Mayor Hudson asked is staff aware of this issue with the 

flooding? 

 

Mr. Sweeney said both St. Lucie County Engineering and Public 

Works, and also the City Engineering Staff, sit on the TRC.  The 

engineer that did the stormwater calculations is here and can 

speak.  But they are required to do a "no net loss" stormwater 

management system. 

 

Mayor Hudson asked are there further developments down the road? 

 

Mr. Sweeney said they have a Conceptual Development Plan.  It is 

a non-binding concept which was approved recently (October 15, 

2012).  In order for any of that to be permitted to be 

constructed, they are going to have to go through future land 

use map amendments, rezoning, site plan approval - there is a 

host of other things that will have to occur where the City 

Commission will certainly have the ability to provide input, as 

well as any residents, at that time.  Right now this is merely 

an application for the church, the parking associated with it, 

and the stormwater improvements. 

 

Commissioner Sessions said he understands the point Commissioner 

Becht made with regards to the gentleman's agreement, on 

planning issues they work concurrently together.  Are they 

starting to get into a world where they have to have the 

County's approval?  And why is this situation unique where there 

is a condition that a County requirement be placed on an 

applicant? 

 

Mr. Sweeney said South 25th Street is a County-owned and 

maintained right-of-way.  So when they impose conditions that 

require right-of-way dedication or road improvement agreements 

with the County, it is because the road that this develops abuts 

is owned by the County.  So to that extent yes, they do have to 

receive County approval in order for them to permit the driveway 

to connect to the County road.  The County Commissioners 

probably would not be made aware of this project other than the 

sign that was posted by the property or if they happened to be a 

property owner within 500 feet of the subject project or the 

legal ad that is posted in the newspaper.  A lot of folks got 

wind of this by watching the Planning Board meeting on TV.  They 

are over and above, in his opinion, open about the projects they 

are reviewing.  If County Staff raised an issue, they would go 

through their proper protocols.  But this isn't a secret by any 

means. 

 

Commissioner Sessions said he just hopes they don't get in a 

situation or start opening up a can of worms.  It is a Site Plan 

approval.  He was just wondering, did it necessitate placing on 
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the applicant those first two conditions.  But according to what 

Mr. Sweeney said, the applicant didn't have a problem with it.  

But the next applicant may.  He just wanted to bring that to his 

attention. 

 

Mr. Sweeney said over the years they have had some applications 

that came forward with unusual County conditions; and the City 

Commission decided not to impose such conditions on those 

particular development applications.  They traditionally honor 

the County conditions, provided they work with the applicants 

and the applicants are willing to adhere to those and if they 

are reasonable.  But sometimes the Commission has seen that 

those conditions are not reasonable; therefore, it is up to the 

applicant to work out any logistics with the County should there 

be an issue such as connecting to the road, which would 

necessitate a right-of-way permit issued by the County.  Those 

things do happen, but they try to work those logistics out with 

the County during the review process while the application is 

under review. 

 

Commissioner Perona said he has lived here long enough to know 

that the usual Florida weather is unusual.  With storm surge and 

things like that, do they have a comfort level with the issues 

that were raised?  He is familiar with that area.  He almost 

purchased property in there until he went to see it during a 

storm and found out that he needed a boat to get to it.  Net 

zero storm runoff, basically is that something that has been 

considered in almost every scenario that could give some comfort 

to the fact that this development would not be adding to the 

problem in the area? 

 

Commissioner Becht said the City is currently in some form of 

claim or litigation by a property owner that developed a church 

and they are complaining that they don't have any run-off from 

their property because they complied with the City's 

requirements - Westside Baptist.  Their position is, the City 

made them build this so that it really was a net-zero runoff and 

they shouldn't have to pay stormwater fees because they don't 

discharge out to their facilities, if he understands the basis 

for the lawsuit.  He heard the lady's concerns about drainage.  

He thinks their staff, engineers, and the applicant are able to 

make this project work, so this property owner has the right and 

the ability to develop their property without creating 

additional impositions on adjoining property owners, whether it 

be the County or private citizens. 

 

Mr. Jack Andrews, City Engineer, said that is correct.  When the 

project comes through, it is very closely scrutinized.  Any 

storage that is taken away by the development is replaced by the 

development.  They review it for the amount of runoff produced 

and the developer will have to compensate for any runoff they 

produce by improving their property. 

 

Commissioner Perona asked what about the unusual weather they 

get?  Do they have a sense that this is really going to handle 

and mitigate those issues to the point where it isn't going to 

be any worse than if it was just vacant property? 
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Mr. Andrews said this is an area that is historically flooded.  

This development will be upland of that and will have to 

maintain their water to prevent any additional runoff from going 

into the system.  This is not going to do anything for what is 

coming upstream to this.  This is unfortunately on the 

downstream side of a large drainage area.  They have the problem 

with the area not handling all the runoffs.  This project 

shouldn't affect it one way or the other. 

 

Mayor Hudson asked is he saying it won't make it worse? 

 

Mr. Andrews said it will not make it worse. 

 

Commissioner Becht said there had been discussions at the County 

level, when the County had money, about buying property and 

submitting the property that the County bought to areas where 

that water could be stored temporarily during storm events.  

Obviously the money went away, it's not there to buy the 

properties.  There have also been arguments made that if they 

use somebody's land and flood it regularly, then that can become 

a de facto taking, and it is something they need to stay away 

from.  One other point, they actually have a formal agreement 

with the County where they are trying to work better together by 

coordinating the development that does happen.  It is not an 

optional or gentleman's agreement where their City Staff sits 

down with County Staff, it is mandatory.  They just weren't 

doing it, so the Commissions formalized it with the Joint 

Planning Agreement.  It has worked better since they adopted it.  

He shares the concerns about the County's taking property.  Here 

apparently the County is not taking too much of a right-of-way 

dedications.  For example, on one project on King's Highway the 

County asked for 300 feet of an applicant's property.  The FDOT 

representative was here.  FDOT controls King's Highway.  The 

FDOT representative said they only need 110 feet.  So in that 

particular instance, they got things worked out for their 

applicant so that this exorbitant land request by the County was 

not enforced by the City through their planning process. 

 

Mr. Daniel Retherford, Engineering, Design, & Construction Inc., 

said he is here representing the applicant.  On the issue about 

the County imposing some things, it is pretty regular.  The City 

has caught all the things that kind of stood out, that weren't 

quite right.  The conditions attached to this are perfectly 

legit, it is things the applicant is going to have to do 

regardless because they are asking for access to the County's 

right-of-way.  They are going to have to do these things as part 

of the permitting process.  It's okay, they agree.  But he 

thanks the Commission for looking out for them.  As far as the 

stormwater goes, it is a matter of state, county, and city laws.  

Any project that comes through the City of Fort Pierce, two 

things have to happen.  If they are in a flood plain, they have 

to compensate for any storage they take up and they have to have 

no adverse effects.  For instance, if they take up a pound of 

dirt and put in on their property, they need to find that same 

volume somewhere on their property and dig a hole.  That's how 

that works, they can have zero adverse impact.  That is any 

project that is in a flood plain in the City or anywhere in the 

State actually.  The second thing that has to happen is, any 

time they develop a piece of property and it goes through Mr. 
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Andrews office, they have to make sure that the stormwater 

leaves the property at a rate slower than it did before they got 

there.  So they have to store more and they have to let it go 

slower - every project that comes through, every time.  As far 

as the church, they are really excited, they want to get to work 

and get to construction as soon as possible. 

 

Seeing no one further and hearing no one wishing to be heard, 

Mayor Hudson declared the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Alexander, seconded by 

Commissioner Sessions, to approve the Conditional Use & Site 

Plan submitted by Clarence E. Glover for construction of Mount 

Bethel Baptist Church to be located on South 25th Street, east 

of Fort Pierce Central High School, with the following 

conditions:  (1) The applicant shall record the St. Lucie County 

requested right-of-way dedication within 90 days of Site Plan 

approval; (2) The applicant shall enter into a Road Improvement 

Agreement with St. Lucie County within 90 days of Site Plan 

approval; (3) The applicant shall complete all of the required 

off-site improvements prior to the issuance of a Certificate of 

Occupancy; (4) The applicant shall remove all listed exotic 

plant species from the project limits in accordance with Section 

22-187(1)(e) of the City Code prior to the issuance of a 

Certificate of Occupancy; and (5) The applicant shall have a 

formal gopher tortoise survey completed prior to the issuance of 

a Building Permit or any other site disturbance permit. 

 

Those voting in favor of the motion were:  Commissioners 

Alexander, Becht, Perona, Sessions, and Hudson.  Those opposed:  

None. 

----- 

Ordinance No. L-286 entitled, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 

COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA; REZONING TWO (2) 

PARCELS OF LAND LOCATED IN THE EDGARTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT; ONE 

PARCEL WHICH IS ZONED R-4, MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL ZONE, AND 

ONE PARCEL WHICH IS ZONED C-3, GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONE; BOTH 

PARCELS TO BE REZONED TO ES, EDGARTOWN SETTLEMENT ZONE; 

PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF ORDINANCES OR PARTS THEREOF IN CONFLICT; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE." was placed on second and final 

reading and read by title only. 

 

Mayor Hudson declared a Public Hearing on Ordinance No. L-286 in 

session and asked if anyone in the audience wished to be heard. 

 

Seeing no one and hearing no one wishing to be heard, Mayor 

Hudson declared the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Alexander, seconded by 

Commissioner Perona, that Ordinance No. L-286 be passed on 

second and final reading. 

 

Those voting in favor of the passage of Ordinance No. L-286 on 

second and final reading were:  Commissioners Alexander, Becht, 

Perona, Sessions, and Hudson.  Those opposed:  None. 

----- 

City Clerk Steele introduced the following Resolution by title 

only: 

 









   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   9. d.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Lot Clearing Lien Reduction - 810 N 14th Street
Submitted For: Peggy Arraiz, Code Compliance Manager, Code Enforcement 

SUBJECT:
Approval of request to waive administrative fees in the amount of $100 for a Lot Clearing Lien
totaling $350 against 810 N. 4th Street, owned by Theresa and Jerry L. Wilson, contingent upon
payment of $250.

SUMMARY:
Mr. Wilson disputes that a city vendor did any work as he maintains his lot. However, the lot
was included in the recent lot clearing sweep and was not compliant with the CPTED
standards. A city vendor was hired to clear shrubbery and remove dead debris from the property.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends waiving the administrative fees of $100.00, leaving a balance of $250.00.

ALTERNATIVES:
Deny the request.1.
Make alternate recommendation.2.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Colleen Greer

COORDINATED WITH:
Margaret M Arraiz, Code Compliance Manager
Kathy D'Arton, Accounts Receivable

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year: FY14
Account:
Amount: 250.00

OTHER INFORMATION:
Revenue of $250.00 to General Fund

Attachments
Wilson cost breakdown
Wilson amount due



Wilson reduction request



MEMORANDUM

TO: The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission

THROUGH: Robert J. Bradshaw, City Manager

FROM: Colleen Greer, Executive Assistant to Code Enforcement

SUBJECT: LOT CLEARING LIEN REDUCTION 
                        810 N 14th Street, Fort Pierce, FL                                              

DATE: December 26, 2013
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________

The following is a breakdown of the above property:

Lot Clearing Fines (General Fund) Interest & Penalties Administrative Fees

$ 250.00         $ .00          $100.00

___________________________________________________________________________________

Totals:               $ 250.00         $ .00                   $100.00   

AMOUNT THAT CAN BE WAIVED (ALL INTEREST & PENALTIES) $      .00

AMOUNT THAT CANNOT BE WAIVED (ALL LOT CLEARING & ADMIN COSTS)                $ 350.00

TOTAL                 $ 350.00

AMOUNT REQUESTED TO BE WAIVED $ 350.00

AMOUNT BEING OFFERED FOR SETTLEMENT                                                  $       .00

TOTAL                 $ 350.00











   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   10. a.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Ordinance 14-001 - American Legion Post 40 - Alleyway Abandonment
Submitted For: Rebecca Grohall, Planning & Zoning Manager, Planning & Zoning 

SUBJECT:
Ordinance No: 14-001 - Application for Alleyway Abandonment - American Legion Post 40 - 810
South US Highway 1. SECOND READING.

SUMMARY:
On November 21, 1966, the City Commission abandoned the northern one hundred eighty
feet (180’) of the subject alleyway via Ordinance E-388.
The applicants are requesting that an additional seventy feet (70’) of the subject alleyway
be abandoned.
The applicants are requesting that the alleyway be abandoned at no additional cost (than
what has already been incurred by the applicants).

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the abandonment request.

ALTERNATIVES:
Deny the abandonment request.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Ryan Sweeney, MSP, Senior Planner

COORDINATED WITH:
City Attorney's Office

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
The applicants are requesting that the alleyway be abandoned at no additional cost
($1,500.00).

Attachments
Ordinance 14-001
Staff Report



August 14, 2012 Planning Board Minutes
Location / Aerial Map
Zoning Map
Property Record Cards
Application
Appraisal
Survey



ORDINANCE NO. 14-001 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF FORT 
PIERCE, FLORIDA, ABANDONING A PORTION OF AN EXISTING 20 
FOOT ALLEYWAY, LYING ADJACENT AND EASTERLY OF LOT 15 
AND THE NORTH 10 FEET OF LOT 16, BLOCK 8, PINEWOOD 
SUBDIVISION WITHIN THE CITY OF FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING FOR THE RESERVATION OF A UTILITY EASEMENT FOR 
ALL UTILITY PURPOSES UNTO THE CITY OF FORT PIERCE, 
FLORIDA; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Fort Pierce has a certain alleyway or thoroughfare as 

hereinafter described, which is not needed for alleyway or thoroughfare purposes but 

which is needed for the location and maintenance of any and all utilities by the City of 

Fort Pierce, both now existing and which may be installed in the future.  

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF FORT 

PIERCE, FLORIDA; 

 SECTION 1.  That portion of an existing 20 foot alleyway, lying adjacent and 

easterly of Lot 15 and the north 10 feet of Lot 16, Block 8, Pinewood Subdivision within 

the City of Fort Pierce, Florida (more particularly described as follows), be and is hereby 

vacated and abandoned and there is hereby saved and reserved unto the City of Fort 

Pierce, Florida, for the use and benefit of the Fort Pierce Utility Authority an easement 

for all utility purposes over the entire tract and lands identified herein: 

THE PORTION OF AN EXISTING 20 FOOT ALLEYWAY, LYING 
ADJACENT AND EASTERLY OF LOT 15 AND THE NORTH 10 FEET 
OF LOT 16, BLOCK 8, PLAT OF PINEWOOD, AS RECORDED IN PLAT 
BOOK 5, PAGE 24 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. LUCIE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 
As depicted on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 2. The City shall deed an easement over the entire area to be 

abandoned for the benefit of the Fort Pierce Utilities Authority (FPUA) prior to any 

abandonment of this alleyway. 

 SECTION 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 SECTION 4.  This ordinance shall be and become effective upon all conditions 

precedent being met and the granting of utility easements for the benefit of the FPUA.  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM & CORRECTNESS: 

 

____________________________ 
Robert V. Schwerer, Esq. 
City Attorney 
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STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ST. LUCIE 

 

 WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, Mayor Commissioner and the City Clerk of the City of 

Fort Pierce, Florida, do hereby certify that the foregoing and above Ordinance No. 14-

001 was duly advertised by title only in the St. Lucie News Tribune on December 26, 

2013; copy of said ordinance was made available at the office of the City Clerk to the 

public upon request; said ordinance was duly introduced, read by title only, and passed 

on first reading by the City Commission of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida, on January 6, 

2014; and was duly introduced, read by title only, and passed on second and final 

reading on January 21, 2014, by the City Commission of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida. 

 

 IN WITNESS HEREWITH, we hereunto set our hands and affix the Official Seal 

of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida, this the 21st day of January 2014. 

 

      ____________________________  
      Linda Hudson,  

Mayor Commissioner 
 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 
Linda W. Cox,  
City Clerk 

 

(City Seal) 
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Chairman Weaver: Very good. Are there any further questions of the applicant? (none) 
Thank you very much Mr. Cleveland. Any discussion? (none) Closing the public meeting. 
Returning to the board for a discussion or a motion.  
 
Ms. Castro made a motion to approve with staff recommendations.  
 
Mr. Burdge seconds.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Ok for discussion I just wanted to say Mr. Walker you and I had a 
chance to discuss earlier today, I have a financial interest in an adjacent property and we 
talked it through and confirmed that I don’t have a conflict on this matter.  
 
Mr. Walker: Yes Mr. Chair that is correct.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Thank you very much. Is there any further discussion?  
 
Mr. Chase: Is the motion to move the band shell construction up in the phase or are we 
motioning with the phasing as indicated in the site plan.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Correct me if I am wrong but the motion is to accept the application as it 
has presented with staff’s conditions as written. Is that correct?  
 
Ms. Castro: That is correct.  
 
Mr. Chase: Ok thank you.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Any further discussion? Staff call the roll please.  
 
A voice vote was taken. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chairman Weaver: Just for clarity Mr. Poitier was concerned there may have been an 
amendment to the motion and just for the record there was no amendment there was a 
request for a discussion that we fleshed out that the original motion stood as presented.  
 
Mr. Poitier: Right the reason why I asked was because it was already seconded and it was 
not changed.  
 
Chairman Weaver: It was not changed Mr. Chase as a couple of questions about the motion 
as it was presented, it was confirmed how it was presented and Mr. Chase ended his 
discussion and we went forward with the motion as originally presented. Ok thank you Mr. 
Cleveland.  
-----  
 
The next item considered - Item #10 – Alleyway Abandonment – 810 South US HWY 1. 
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Chairman Weaver: Agenda item number 10 the alleyway abandonment at 810 South US 
HWY 1. Staff report please.  
 
Mr. Sweeney: Thank you Mr. Chair and members of the Board. I would like to start with my 
sincerest apologies for the way this fell on the agenda. The Planning Board has a 
predetermined way of establishing the agenda.  
This application has been a long endeavor and of course it would prove to be a long one 
tonight as well. The application is for the abandonment of an existing 20 foot platted alley 
between the American Legion Post 40 / Mosaics of America Inc located between 810 South 
US HWY 1 and 901 South Third Street. This is the aerial location map (referring to the 
display) I tried my best to explain in this diagram here but back on 06 December 1966 
Ordinance E-388 abandoned the platted alley for most of the property and reserved a utility 
and ingress easement over same. For whatever reason they failed to abandon the 
remainder of the alleyway. I have my suspicion that at this point it is bordered between two 
properties whereas here the American Legion owned all of the abutting parcels so it was 
not a big deal as far as splitting ownership. Here you will find that the proposed 
abandonment is actually going to be required as with any abandonment when there are two 
different property owners that abut it the land will be split, split the difference. So the 
American Legion will get the western 10 feet of the alley and the Mosaics of America will 
receive the eastern 10 feet of the alley and a utility easement will be reserved over the 
entire portion.  
Staff is recommending approval of the abandonment with the following condition:  
 

1. The applicant shall provide two separate sketch and legal descriptions for 
what I am calling ‘splitting the difference’, the eastern and the western 10 
feet. 
 

Right now the sketch and the legal that is provided in your packet simply abandons the 
entire 20 feet but it does not clearly define or depict how that property is going to be split 
among the two parties. So I am requiring that they submit revised sketch and legal 
descriptions depicting as such.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Thank you very much sir. Any questions of staff?  
 
Mr. Burdge: Does that alley continue further south?  
 
Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Chair and Mr. Burdge that alley continues all the way south to whatever 
the next east/west street is.  
 
Mr. Burdge: That would be the one that would go towards the Police Station.  
 
Mr. Sweeney: The PD yes correct.  
 
Mr. Burdge: And the alleyway if we look on the picture here, yes in the blue area that you 
have that was at one time, that was abandoned to the American Legion.  
 
Mr. Sweeney: Correct.  
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Mr. Burdge: Ok and who is asking for this to be abandoned?  
 
Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Chair and Mr. Burdge, the American Legion is the original applicant. 
When I first sent this out to TRC and the City’s Attorney Office they did require that the 
neighboring property owner join in on the application so the applicant has been revised to 
include Mosaics of America.  
 
Mr. Burdge: Ok I know in the past that when the City abandoned alleyways, when they 
were being asked to abandon alleyways, if it is my remembrance we used to ask them to 
buy it from us.  
 
Mr. Sweeney:  Mr. Chair and Mr. Burdge that is a very good point the section on 
abandonment in the City Code is Section 17-1 and it is literally two lines. It says that “All 
abandonments shall be done via Ordinance” and the second section says “The applicant 
shall be required to pay for all costs associated with the abandonment of the alleyway”. I 
have not been provided with an appraisal of this property so I have a tough time believing 
that it is truly valueless but I don’t know a cost that would be associated with this alley. It is 
certainly something that I think we can recommend as a requirement that they submit so 
that we can determine the cost that may or not be associated with this.  
 
Mr. Burdge: The aspect of splitting it I think that was always understood. A number of 
alleyways off of North 10th, 11th and 12th Street(s) were abandoned at some point and I 
don’t remember if the City at that point requested that they pay them or if we just 
abandoned them and split the property in half. But somewhere I remember that the City, 
especially when they were being requested asked that some price be paid for them. I know 
that the City at times have tried to abandon property that the property owners refused to 
take that was on South 19th Street just south of Virginia Ave.  
 
Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Chair and Mr. Burdge that is a good point. The congress of that is when 
the City tries to purchase right of way, you know we pay a lot.  
 
Mr. Walker: Mr. Chair excuse me.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Yes Mr. Walker. 
 
Mr. Walker: Mr. Chair normally the discussion about whether the City is to put the property 
out for bid or to divide it between the adjoin property owners is a discussion that takes 
place at the Commission level. That is a decision to be made by the elected officials, the 
Board itself traditionally confines its consideration to the planning factors that govern the 
decision making process for instance; the City has in years in past had a alleyway 
abandonment study that was done for the specific purpose of reviewing each of the 
alleyways to see whether there was any public purpose to be served in retaining the 
property or not. I don’t know whether or to what extent that study remains germane or 
would have any application at all to this specific property, I merely cite that as an example 
of the sort of planning factors that the Board takes into account in discharging its 
recommending role in this matter. But the Board does not itself get involved in the financial 
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niceties of how the property is to be disposed of once that initial decision is made to 
abandon the property.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Thank you very much Mr. Walker. We will keep our comments to the 
technical aspects.  
 
Mr. Burdge: I just regress back to the old days Jim you know that. (laughter) 
 
Chairman Weaver: It is worth noting as we end that part of it that if the City required that 
alley be put there in a plat years ago I would find it awkward if they asked to be paid for it 
when it was abandoned later on but that is out of our purview. Mr. Poitier you had a 
question?  
 
Mr. Poitier: I wanted to ask Mr. Sweeny you want us to approve this?  
 
Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Chair and Mr. Poitier the staff is recommending approval that the 
alleyway be abandoned with the understanding that… the Ordinance unfortunately has not 
be drafted but the Ordinance will reserve easement over same and that is a requirement of 
the FPUA. There are existing utilities, gas, water, overhead electric so staff is 
recommending approval that the abandonment be approved and again the Ordinance will 
reserve easement over same.  
 
Mr. Poitier: Ok we had one four years ago that the City was fighting over, the same one the 
attorney was talking about.  
 
Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Poitier and Mr. Chair the planning issues for this particular abandonment 
application are zero. If there were an access or… it is important to point out that the 
existing American Legion structure is actually constructed about 9 ½ feet into the alleyway. 
So the reason that they are requesting this abandonment is to effectively be able to own 
the property that their building is actually on. Currently a portion, this southeastern corner is 
in the City’s property at the moment. So that is the reason, again there is no access or 
other planning related function that this particular portion of this particular platted alleyway 
serves at this time.  
 
Mr. Poitier: Ok.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Ok great thank you Mr. Sweeney. Any further questions of staff? (none) 
Is there anyone here from the public who would like to speak on this matter please come 
forward?  
 
Mr. Tom James (representative American Legion): First of all I wish you would have got me 
up here a whole lot earlier but… 
 
Chairman Weaver: You have to blame staff for that sir. (laughter) 
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Mr. Tom James (representative American Legion):  Actually Ryan has been a lot of help for 
us and I don’t have a problem with him at all. My name is Tom James and I am the 
Commander of the American Legion Post 40, 4027 US HWY 1 Fort Pierce.  
The reason we are trying to do this is so that our property actually does… so we will own 
the underneath of our property. This has been a nightmare I will tell you we have been two 
years to get this far. We had to get a new survey and the legal descriptions. The legal 
description he wants (Mr. Sweeney) I have two of them. One that divides it and stuff like 
that. I believe I turned one in but I have copies so that is no problem. What we are trying to 
do is just… like I say we have been two years just trying to get to this point where we 
actually own the property that our building is on. I appreciate your consideration, thank you 
very much.  
 
Chairman Weaver: The buy in of the property owner to the east and the split of the land 
and the split of the cost… 
 
Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Chair that is a good question. We did meet with both the representatives, 
one from the American Legion as well as the representative from Mosaics of America Inc. 
they have joined in on the application. They did indicate that they would not be interested in 
paying anything for purchasing the actual property. So if it turns out again I don’t want to 
get off track but they are involved and they have joined in on the application.  
 
Chairman Weaver: And for the record you have probably spent some money on the 
surveys and your time.  
 
Mr. Tom James (representative American Legion): We have spent $850.00 on the survey 
plus the permit was $500.00, I believe to get the abandonment started so we have money 
invested in it and the American Legion has paid for all of that.  
 
Chairman Weaver: That was probably for your benefit to put that on the record and thank 
you.  
 
Mr. Tom James (representative American Legion): Thank you.  
 
Chairman Weaver: Anyone else from the public who would like to speak on this? Seeing 
none I will close the public meeting and return to the board.  
 
Mr. Burdge made a motion for approval with the staff comments and 
recommendations in dividing the properties and such into two and that the FPUA 
continues to have its easement.  
 
Mr. Poitier seconds.  
 
Chairman Weaver: We have a motion and a second is there any further discussion? Staff 
please call the roll.  
 
A voice vote was taken. 
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The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chairman Weaver: Thank you very much for your time and you are one step closer to being 
abandoned. (laughter) 
 
Mr. Tom James (representative American Legion): Thank you all very much.  
 
Mr. Poitier: You are welcome.  
-----  
 
Item #11 – LDR Update. 
 
Chairman Weaver: Item number 11 the LDR update.  
 
Mr. Margotta: Ok did you get a good chance to review what we sent you on the LDR 
update? That is too tongue and cheek probably for this. About a week or so ago as we 
were developing this final agenda it became more than apparent to me that it has gone 
beyond not working out with our consultant, Duncan and Associates. We quantified it 
because we feel that we are going into a level of negotiation with them. The basic jest of it, 
what it comes down to is that they have done 38.5% of the work and they have billed us for 
100%. They would like for us to pay for the final amount and they have not done any public 
meetings yet much less given us a final document so this thing has torn apart.  
We have done a lot of work. There was a lot of committee work done by the Planning 
Board, we had a committee set aside from citizens that provided the staff with a lot of 
information which of course we have passed on to our consultant. It is coded and known by 
our staff and we now have to embark on an effort of completing this. I wanted to bring this 
up to you because unless you want to have a special meeting at your next meeting I am 
going to purpose how staff is going to address sections. I can’t do this all at once, I cant 
take the whole thing but I think I can do in macro sections. For instance zoning categories 
or design and performance standards like setbacks, heights and so on and then 
procedures like the procedures we use for reviewing Special Exceptions or Conditional Use 
and so on, administrative type of things. Those are three big sections that I can look at in 
the Ordinance to work on, bring to you and hopefully get this done within a few months. I 
also have a better idea of just how many months we are talking about. 
But folks we have run aground and now I get to go through the pleasure of figuring out how 
to extricate ourselves from the contract that we have had, you would think that would be 
simple enough but they are claiming that we owe them more than I would ever say that we 
are going to pay them. So we might end up in a different type of situation with them and 
that will run its own course that is all on staff to finish. It has been years that we have been 
working on this and I felt it was important for me to come to you and explain the situation. 
This is not something I can or could have put into a memo well enough in time to get out in 
your packet. Take me at my word we are at failure.  
If you have some questions for me let me know or if you have some guidance for me. I just 
wanted to give you how I want to do it and what to present to you next month so we can get 
the ball rolling again.  
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PROPERTY RECORD CARD

American Legion     Record: 1 of 2  <<Prev Next >> Spec.Assmnt Taxes  Exemptions Permits Home Print

Property Identification

Site Address: 810 S US HWY 1 ParcelID: 2415-601-0080-000-9
Sec/Town/Range: 15 :35S :40E Account #: 24589
Map ID: 24/15N Land Use: CLUBS
Zoning: C3 City/Cnty: Fort Pierce

Ownership and Mailing Legal Description

Owner: American Legion 

Address: 810 S US Hwy 1 
 Fort Pierce FL 34950-5176 

PINEWOOD S/D BLK 8 LOTS 9 TO 15 INC AND N 1/2 LOT 16-LESS 
US 1 AND LESS S 20 FT- AND VAC ALLEY LYG N
More...

Sales Information Assessment 2011 Final Total Land and Building
Date Price Code Deed Book/Page

1/1/1900 0 / 
     
     
     
     

2011 Final: 439300 Land Value: 245300 Acres: 1.25
Assessed: 439300 Building Value: 194000
Ag.Credit: 0 Finished Area: 7740 SqFt
Exempt: 439300
Taxable: 0
Taxes: 0

BUILDING INFORMATION

Exterior Features

View: - RoofCover: - RoofStruct: - 
ExtType: LC - LC YearBlt: 1969 Frame: - 
Grade: C - C EffYrBlt: 1979 PrimeWall: - 
StoryHght: 0010 - 1 Story No.Units: SecWall: - 

Interior Features

BedRooms: 0 Electric: - PrmIntWall: - 
FullBath: 0 HeatType: - AvgHt/Fl: STD 
1/2Bath: 0 HeatFuel: - Prm.Flors: - 
%A/C: 100 %Heated: 100 %Sprinkled: 0

Special Features and Yard Items Land Information
Type Y/S Qty. Units Qual. Cond. YrBlt.

EXTR - EXTR S 1 29870 AV AV 1979

No. Land Use Type Measure Depth

1 7700-CLUBS 241 -Sq Feet 54501

THIS INFORMATION IS BELIEVED TO BE CORRECT AT THIS TIME BUT IT IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AND IS NOT WARRANTED.

Page 1 of 1Property Appraiser - St.Lucie County, FL

8/7/2012http://www.paslc.org/paslc/prc.asp?prclid=241560100800009



 

PROPERTY RECORD CARD

Mosaics Of America Inc     Record: 1 of 1  <<Prev Next >> Spec.Assmnt Taxes  Exemptions Permits Home Print

Property Identification

Site Address: 901 S 3rd St ParcelID: 2415-601-0072-000-0
Sec/Town/Range: 15 :35S :40E Account #: 24588
Map ID: 24/15N Land Use: WRHSNG DIST
Zoning: C3 City/Cnty: Fort Pierce

Ownership and Mailing Legal Description

Owner: Mosaics Of America Inc 

Address: 901 S 3rd 
 Fort Pierce FL 34950-5159 

PINEWOOD S/D BLK 8 N 18.8 FT OF LOT 1 AND ALL LOTS 2 THRU 
8 INC (OR 1240-2031)

Sales Information Assessment 2011 Final Total Land and Building
Date Price Code Deed Book/Page

8/2/1999 375000 00 WD 1240 / 2031
6/6/1997 270000 01 WD 1081 / 2077

12/10/1996 0 01 CT 1050 / 0276
8/21/1990 0 01 WD 0704 / 2558
1/1/1986 20000 01 CV 0490 / 2573

2011 Final: 449400 Land Value: 106200 Acres: 1.22
Assessed: 449400 Building Value: 343200
Ag.Credit: 0 Finished Area: 12420 SqFt
Exempt:
Taxable:
Taxes: 11017.08

BUILDING INFORMATION

Exterior Features

View: - RoofCover: SM - Sheet Metal RoofStruct: TR - Steel Rigid
ExtType: INDF - INDUS-FLEX YearBlt: 1986 Frame: - 
Grade: Y_D+ - Commer D+ EffYrBlt: 1986 PrimeWall: CM - Corr Metal
StoryHght: 0010 - 1 Story No.Units: SecWall: - 

Interior Features

BedRooms: 0 Electric: MX - MAXIMUM PrmIntWall: DW - Drywall
FullBath: 0 HeatType: FHA - FrcdHotAir AvgHt/Fl: STD 
1/2Bath: 0 HeatFuel: ELEC - Electric Prm.Flors: CG - CONC GRD
%A/C: 50 %Heated: 50 %Sprinkled: 0

Special Features and Yard Items Land Information
Type Y/S Qty. Units Qual. Cond. YrBlt.

CNC1 - CONCRET HIGH Y 1 22000 AV AV 1980

FEN6 - CHAINLINK 6' Y 1 1120 AV AV 1986

BARB - BARB WIRE Y 1 1120 AV AV 1986

No. Land Use Type Measure Depth

1 4800-WRHSNG DIST 310 -Sq Feet 53088

THIS INFORMATION IS BELIEVED TO BE CORRECT AT THIS TIME BUT IT IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AND IS NOT WARRANTED.

Page 1 of 1Property Appraiser - St.Lucie County, FL

8/7/2012http://www.paslc.org/paslc/prc.asp?prclid=241560100720000









































































































 



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   10. b.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Ordinance No: 14-002; Amendment to Chapter 13 for 185 Police Board
Submitted For: Gloria Johnson, Finance Director, Finance Department 

SUBJECT:
Ordinance No: 14-002; An Ordinance of the City Commission of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida
amending Chapter 13, POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT TRUST FUND. FIRST READING

SUMMARY:
The Fort Pierce Police Officer Pension Fund (185) wishes to amend its Pension Ordinance to
allow for greater flexibility to invest its assets.  The amendment of Chapter 13 of the Code is to
amend Section 13-165 (e) entitled Records, Accounts, Disbursements, Deposits, Contributions;
actions to permit the Board to use its discretion to invest and reinvest the moneys of the fund.   

RECOMMENDATION:
Adopt Ordinance No. L-14-002 amending Chapter 13 of the Code.

ALTERNATIVES:
Deny the amendment to the Code.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Finance Director and City Clerk

COORDINATED WITH:
Office of the City Attorney, Jim Walker, Assistant City Attorney and Law Offices of Perry &
Jensen, LLC (Police Officers’ Retirement 185 Fund Legal Council)

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
n/a

 
Budgeted Y/N: n
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:



OTHER INFORMATION:
NA

Attachments
Ordinance 14-002



City of Fort Pierce, P.O. Box 1480, Ft. Pierce, FL 34954-1480 – 772.460.2200

City of Fort Pierce, Florida
City Commission Meeting

To      :  The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission

Through :  Robert J. Bradshaw, City Manager

From :  Gloria J. Johnson, Director of Finance

Re :   Ordinance No: 14-002; Amendment to Chapter 13, Police    
    Officers Retirement – Amending Section 13-165(e)- To Permit 
    The Board To Use Its Discretion To Invest and Reinvest The 
    Moneys Of The Fund
     

Date :  January 13, 2014

ISSUE(S): The Fort Pierce Police Officer Pension Fund (185) wishes 
to amend its Pension Ordinance to allow for greater 
flexibility to invest assets.

SUMMARY: The amendment of Chapter 13 of the Code is to amend 
Section 13-165 (e) entitled Records, Accounts, 
Disbursements, Deposits, Contributions; actions to 
permit the Board to use its discretion to invest and 
reinvest the moneys of the fund.    

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Ordinance No. L-14-002 amending Chapter 13 of 
the Code.

ALTERNATIVES: Deny the amendment to the Code.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF: Finance Director and City Clerk

COORDINATED WITH: Office of the City Attorney, Jim Walker, Assistant City 
Attorney and Law Offices of Perry & Jensen, LLC (Police 
Officers’ Retirement 185 Fund Legal Council)

ATTACHMENTS: Amended Ordinance No. 14-002.

Agenda Item #

Commission Meeting 01/21/14



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   11. a.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Click-2-Gov Presentation
Submitted For: Marc Meyers, Building Official, Building 

SUBJECT:
Building Department Click-2-Gov Presentation in an effort to educate the public on the Building
Department permit portal.

SUMMARY:
The Building Official's presentation will include the step by step process on how to navigate the
website:
1. Tracking a building permit application
2. Scheduling an inspection
3. Check inspection results
4. Checking for building permits

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES:
N/A

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Marc Meyers, Building Official

COORDINATED WITH:
Kristie Kirstein, Senior Permit Specialist

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
N/A



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   11. b.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: City Marina Reconstruction Update
Submitted For: John Andrews, City Engineer, Engineering 

SUBJECT:
City Marina Reconstruction Update

SUMMARY:
LMAC is completing the final items that have been at issue for them to meet substantial
completion. LMAC is working on demobilization and starting site restoration.
Staff is completing the final assimilation of contract documents for the Phase II contract to
Bellingham Marine. Staff is preparing to bring the contract to commission for approval at the
February 3, 2014 Commission meeting.

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES:
N/A

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Edward Seissiger, Project Coordinator

COORDINATED WITH:
Richard Czlapinski and Brian Proctor with Tetra Tech EC., Linda Whalen and
Purchasing Staff, Lucas Marine Construction Staff, Bellingham Marine Staff, Public
Works, Local Stake Holders

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
None at this time



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   11. c.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Single Stream Recycling Update
Submitted For: Mike Reals, Public Works Manager, Public Works 

SUBJECT:
Monthly update of the City of Fort Pierce Solid Waste Division's Single Stream Recycling
Program.

SUMMARY:
Staff is prepared to present a progress update to the Commission and answer any questions
concerning the project.

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES:
N/A

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Public Works Department

COORDINATED WITH:
N/A

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
None



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   11. d.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Highwaymen Heritage Trail Presentation
Submitted For: Libby Woodruff, Grant Writer, Urban Redevelopment 

SUBJECT:
Highwaymen Heritage Trail Project Presentation

SUMMARY:
The City Commission previously requested an update on the Highwaymen Heritage Trail
project. This request is for time at the January 21 City Commission meeting to meet that request.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Manager allow approximately 10 minutes for this presentation
during the January 21 City Commission meeting.

ALTERNATIVES:
Do not allow time for the presentation.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Libby Woodruff, Grants Administrator

COORDINATED WITH:
Nicholas Mimms, Deputy City Manager

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
None.

Attachments
Highwaymen Presentation



The Highwaymen Heritage Trail

Modeled after the City's award-winning Zora Neale Hurston Dust Tracks Trail, the 

Highwaymen Heritage Trail project is designed to commemorate Fort Pierce’s world-

renown mostly self-taught landscape African American artists and help convey their 

plight, fortitude, entrepreneurial spirit and accomplishments.



The Highwaymen Heritage Trail
Scholars and Collaborators

Professor Kristin G. Congdon, Professor Emerita, University of Central Florida

Patricia Borns, University of Miami, Multi-media Journalist, Miami Herald

Professor Walt Hines and Students from IRSC Kight  Center for Emerging Technologies

Highwaymen – Al Black, Mary Ann Carroll, James Gibson, Carnell Smith

Doretha Hair Truesdell, Widow of Highwayman Alfred Hair

Zanobia Jefferson, Retired Art Teacher at Lincoln Park Academy 

Marjorie Harrell, Lincoln Park Matriarch

Lincoln Park Main Street



The Highwaymen Heritage Trail
Phase I

Funded through Grant from Florida Humanities Council and 
CDBG ‘Art in Public Places’ Activity

Included design and creation of website, trail map, 
promotional materials, and three (3) trail signs



The Highwaymen Heritage Trail
Final Phase

Application submitted to FHC - December, 2013
Award announcement - February, 2014

Five (5) Trail Signs

Advertising and Promotion

Interactive Trail Map

Historic newspaper stories, photos, etc. 

Links and advertisements for Lincoln Park and Fort Pierce restaurants,               
tourism venues and to Highwaymen websites

Promotion for Highwaymen, Lincoln Park and Fort Pierce events

Opportunity for visitors to leave comments and suggestions



The Highwaymen Heritage Trail Map



The Highwaymen Heritage Trail
Trail Signs

Large Kiosk: 5’ tall, 4’ wide, 2-sided high pressure laminate, full-color, 3/16” thick

Trail Marker: 3’ tall, 2’ wide, 1-sided high pressure laminate, full-color, 3/16” thick

Phase Sign Type Location

Phase I Large Kiosk 482 N Indian River Drive (House of Seven Gables)
(Installed next to existing Zora Hurston Trail sign)

Phase I Trail Marker 2804 Dunbar Street (The Dunbar House)

Phase I Trail Marker 1907 Avenue D (formerly Eddie’s Place)

Final Large Kiosk 10th Street & Avenue K (Pine Grove Cemetery)

Final Large Kiosk 725 Avenue D (Intermodal Transit Station)

Final Trail Marker 122 Backus Avenue (A.E. Backus Studio)
(Installed next to existing Zora Hurston Trail sign)

Final Trail Marker 1806 Avenue I (Lincoln Park Academy)
(Installed next to existing Zora Hurston Trail sign)

Final Trail Marker Avenue D and 15th Street (Round-About - Obelisk)







Thehighwaymentrail.com





   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   11. f.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Financial Report for Quarter Ending December 31, 2013
Submitted For: Gloria Johnson, Finance Director, Finance Department 

SUBJECT:
Financial Report for Quarter Ending December 31, 2013

SUMMARY:
The financial report for the period ending December 31, 2013, encompasses General, Marina,
Solid Waste, Golf Course, Sunrise Theatre, Building & Code, and Fort Pierce Redevelopment
Agency Funds.  The financial book shows comparative information for the first quarter of fiscal
2013 and 2014.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Finance Department welcomes any suggestions and/or changes to the format or contents.

ALTERNATIVES:
The report can be enhanced or changed completely.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Finance Director and Chief Accountant

COORDINATED WITH:
Finance Department and City Manager

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N: N
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
NA

Attachments
FY2014 1st Quarter





General Marina Solid Golf Sunrise Building

Evaluation Criteria Fund Fund Waste Course Theatre & Code

The revenue  projections for the fund are on target. Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes

The expense budget is on target. Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Positive Net Operating Income  Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes

The fund cash balance is positive. Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes

The fund  current financial position is stable. Yes Yes Yes No No Yes

CRA CRA 103 105 107 Grant

Evaluation Criteria Operating Bond CDBG SHIP NSP Admin

The revenue  projections for the fund are on target. Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

The expense budget is on target. Yes No No Yes Yes Yes

The fund cash balance is positive. Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

The fund  current financial position is stable. Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes

CITY OF FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA

FUND EVALUATION REPORT

FOR THE QUARTER ENDING

December 31, 2013
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1ST

QUARTER

REVENUES:

CURRENT  AD VALOREM 0

DELIQUENT AD VALOREM 0

LOCAL OPTION GAS TAX 0

TELECOMMUNICATION TAX 0

UTILITY TAX 0

OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE & PERMITS 0

STATE SHARED REVENUES 0

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 0

COURT & OTHER FINES 0

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 0

MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACTUAL REVENUE 0

UTILITY AUTHORITY TRANSFER 0

INTER-FUND TRANSFER 0

FUND BALANCE 0

REVENUE TOTALS 0

GENERAL FUND
Projected (Shortage) or Overage for

Fiscal Year 2013/14
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1ST

QUARTER

EXPENDITURES:

SALARIES AND BENEFITS 0

EXPENDITURES 0

CAPITAL 0

GRANTS AND AIDS 0

FUNDS TRANSFER 0

EXPENDITURES TOTALS 0

PROJECTED REVENUE OVERAGE (SHORTAGE) 0

GENERAL FUND

Projected (Shortage) or Overage for

Fiscal Year 2013/14      CONT'D
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2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Budget Actual 25% Budget Actual 25%

Taxes

311 10 Current Ad Valorem $  10,199,272 $  7,165,379 70.25% $  12,386,111 $  8,694,172 70.19%

311 15 Ad Valorem Adjustment Amount  0  0 0.00% (619,306) 0 0.00%

311 20 Delinquent Ad Valorem  150,000  23,891 15.93%  50,000  4,926 9.85%

312 31 Local Option Gas Tax  1,327,232  327,098 24.65%  1,340,000  318,579 23.77%

312 32 New Local Option Gas Tax  922,768  228,834 24.80%  950,000  238,853 25.14%

314 10 Public Service Electricity  2,123,043  567,328 26.72%  2,050,000  536,125 26.15%

314 11 Electricity FPL  226,957  76,569 33.74%  250,000  90,963 36.39%

314 20 Telecommunications Tax  1,700,000  492,958 29.00%  1,725,000  363,305 21.06%

314 30 Public Service Water  425,000  124,535 29.30%  425,000  117,686 27.69%

314 30 Miscellaneous Taxes 0  225 0.00% 0  162 0.00%

 Total Taxes $  17,074,272 $  9,006,817 52.75% $  18,556,805 $  10,364,771 55.85%  

  

Licenses and Permits   

321 20 Occupational Licenses $  280,000 $  241,418 86.22% $  270,000 $  235,944 87.39%

323 10 Planning & Zoning Fees  35,000  4,875 13.93%  25,000  2,890 11.56%

323 30 Amendments  15,000 500 3.33%  3,000 17,165 572.17%

323 50 Landscaping  0 245 0.00%  0 0 0.00%

323 60 Sign Fees  0 1,105 0.00%  0 1,560 0.00%

323 90 Miscellaneous  10,000  4,640 46.40%  25,000  3,590 14.36%

329 10 Animal Licenses  10,000  484 4.84%  3,000  1,265 42.17%

329 20 Lot Clearing Permits  5,000  144 2.88%  5,000  140 2.80%

329 30 Demolition Permits  0  0 0.00%  0  5,524 0.00%

329 90 Tree Permits/Special Events  0  150 0.00%  500  100 20.00%

Total Licenses and Permits $  355,000 $  253,561 71.43% $  331,500 $  268,178 80.90%

Intergovernmental Revenues

335 12 State Revenue Sharing $  1,078,000 $  286,445 26.57% $  1,125,000 $  289,349 25.72%

335 13 Half Cent Sales Tax  1,200,000  322,374 26.86%  1,300,000  344,646 26.51%

335 14 Mobile Home License  25,000  17,393 69.57%  30,000  16,726 55.75%

335 15 Beverage License  31,000  5,423 17.50%  31,000  0 0.00%

335 22 Casualty Premium Tax  240,000  0 0.00%  240,000  0 0.00%

335 41 Fuel Tax Refund  55,000  13,725 24.95%  55,000  7,985 14.52%

338 20 County Shared Occup. License  68,000  5,900 8.68%  58,000  5,025 8.66%

339 10 Payments in Lieu of Tax-Hsg Auth  21,000  0 0.00%  21,000  45,043 214.49%

Total Intergovernmental Rev. $  2,718,000 $  651,260 23.96% $  2,860,000 $  708,774 24.78%

GENERAL FUND - REVENUE DETAIL
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2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Budget Actual 25% Budget Actual 25%

GENERAL FUND - REVENUE DETAIL

Charges for Services   

341 30 Sale Maps and Publications $  500 $  534 106.80% $  500 $  89 17.80%

341 40 Certified Copying & Rec Search  27,000  7,967 29.51%  27,000  7,759 28.74%

341 41 Reproduction-City Hall  6,000 0 0.00%  6,000 (78) -1.30%

341 42 Application Fee  3,000  4,000 133.33%  3,000  3,620 120.67%

341 90 Investigative Surcharge  21,000  4,389 20.90%  21,000  6,137 29.22%

341 91 Jury Duty and Fees  100  0 0.00%  100  0 0.00%

341 92 Qualifying Fees  1,000  140 0.00%  1,000  0 0.00%

341 93 Data Processing Services  1,000  0 0.00%  1,000  0 0.00%

343 91 Lot Clearing-Admin. Charge  10,000  2,313 23.13%  10,000  2,549 25.49%

343 92 Rotation Towing-Admin. Charge  35,000  0 0.00%  35,000  6,425 18.36%

347 40 Community Center/Bus. Social  33,000  8,922 27.04%  33,000  6,140 18.60%

347 42 Community Center Special Events  25,000  7,275 29.10%  25,000  8,475 33.90%

347 44 Community Center Rental Fees  12,000  2,625 21.88%  20,000  3,065 15.32%

347 48 Community Center Events  5,000  3,401 68.02%  10,000  3,535 35.35%

347 49 Community Center Other  300  0 0.00%  8,000  220 2.75%

347 92 Youth Activity Funds  0  14,207 0.00%  0  0 0.00%

Total Charges for Services $  179,900 $  55,773 31.00% $  200,600 $  47,934 23.90%

Fines and Forfeitures

351 10 Court Fines $  70,000 $  9,587 13.70% $  70,000 $  21,118 30.17%

351 30 Police Education  8,500  1,424 16.75%  8,500  2,396 28.19%

354 10 Alarm Permit Violations  50,000  3,050 6.10%  15,000  0 0.00%

354 20 License Penalties  500  3,948 789.59%  10,000  3,415 34.15%

354 30 Animal Control  4,000  1,363 34.08%  4,000  1,614 40.34%

354 50 Property Code Violations  40,000  2,580 6.45%  45,000  56,522 125.60%

 Total Fines & Forfeitures $  173,000 $  21,952 12.69% $  152,500 $  85,064 55.78%

Miscellaneous Revenues

361 10 Interest on Investments $  40,000 $  7,627 19.07% $  40,000 $  6,841 17.10%

361 20 Interest of SBA  0  0 0.00%  0  0 0.00%

361 33 Other Interest Earnings  1,750  367 20.97%  1,750  306 17.47%

362 11 Anchor Carwash  1,440  1,126 78.16%  1,440  0 0.00%

362 13 Rent - Little Jim  24,000  6,000 25.00%  24,000  6,435 26.81%

362 15 Misc. Rental  0  270 0.00%  0  750 0.00%

Cert, Copying & Records Search Cert, Copying & Records Search 

Cert, Copying & Records Search 
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2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Budget Actual 25% Budget Actual 25%

GENERAL FUND - REVENUE DETAIL

Miscellaneous Revenues contd.

363 10 Liens  2,000  2,046 102.32%  2,000  13,126 656.32%

363 40 Lot Clearing 0  1,412 0.00% 0  3,198 0.00%

363 50 Interest on Assessments  0  1 0.00%  0  20 0.00%

364 41 Sales of Surplus Equipment  0  0 0.00%  0  397 0.00%

365 10 Sale of Scrap  0  0 0.00%  0  2,022 0.00%

366 90 Other Contributions/Donations  400  375 93.75%  400  310 77.50%

367 00 Gain/Loss on Sale of Investments  5,000  387 7.74%  5,000  2,599 51.97%

369 31 Reimbursement of Expenditures  50,000  115,391 230.78%  50,000  88,490 176.98%

369 32 Purchasing Card Rebate  25,000  61,626 246.51%  40,000  84,178 210.45%

Reimbursement Contractual Services

369 40 Reimbursement-Contract Svcs  38,500  0 0.00%  0  0 0.00%

369 41 Marina  1,500  0 0.00%  1,500  0 0.00%

369 42 Solid Waste  0  0 0.00%  0  0 0.00%

369 43 Community Dev. Block Grant  0  51 0.00%  0  110 0.00%

369 45 Stormwater  750,000  29,374 3.92%  750,000  66,620 8.88%

369 46 Golf Course  30,000  6,000 20.00%  30,000  7,500 25.00%

369 47 Sunrise Theatre 30,000  0 0.00% 30,000  7,500 0.00%

369 49 Accidents  15,000  0 0.00%  15,000  10,000 66.67%

369 50 Other Misc Revenues  5,000 873 17.46%  5,000 521 10.43%

Administrative Reimbursement

369 51 Ft. Pierce Redevelopment Agcy  75,000  12,500 16.67%  75,000  12,500 16.67%

369 52 Marina  40,000  10,000 25.00%  40,000  10,000 25.00%

369 53 Sanitation  80,000  20,000 25.00%  80,000  20,000 25.00%

369 54 Utilities Authority  0 0 0.00%  0 4,800 0.00%

369 55 Retirement & Benefit System  106,000  26,500 25.00%  106,000  26,500 25.00%

369 57 St. Lucie County 0 0 0.00% 0 19,096 0.00%

369 59 Police Department/Detail Work  30,500 17,233 56.50%  30,500 0 0.00%

369 61 Building Department  75,000  18,500 24.67%  85,000  21,250 25.00%

Other Miscellaneous Reimbursements   

369 60 State of Florida  407,358  0 0.00%  407,358  0 0.00%

369 85 Settlement of Claims  25,000  13,692 54.77%  25,000  0 0.00%

369 90 Other Misc. Revenues  10,000  2,813 28.13%  5,000  265 5.30%

 Total Miscellaneous Revenues $  1,868,448 $  354,165 18.96% $  1,849,948 $  415,334 22.45%

CoSalCo

Community Development Block Sales-Surplus Furniture, Fixt., Equip. 
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2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Budget Actual 25% Budget Actual 25%

GENERAL FUND - REVENUE DETAIL

Interfund Transfers

381 23 Transfer from Special Revenue $  60,000 $  0 0.00% $  60,000 $  0 0.00%

381 90 Intergovernmental Fund 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

381 91 FPRA Debt Services  1,860,890 0 0.00%  2,833,627 0 0.00%

381 92 Debt Service Fund 0  0 0.00% 0  0 0.00%

381 93 Golf Course 0  0 0.00% 0  0 0.00%

Total Interfund Transfers $  1,920,890 $  0 0.00% $  2,893,627 $  0 0.00%

Contribution from Enterprise Funds   

382 10 Electricity $  3,709,663 $  0 0.00% $  3,794,436 $  0 0.00%

382 20 Water  817,991  0 0.00%  786,403  0 0.00%

382 30 Gas  217,008  0 0.00%  252,188  0 0.00%

382 40 Sewer  658,821  0 0.00%  681,462  0 0.00%

382 41 UA Other  165  0 0.00%  327  0 0.00%

382 42 UA Advance  307,955  0 0.00%  1,250,000  0 0.00%

382 50 Solid Waste Transfer  1,105,000 276,250 25.00%  1,204,000 311,000 25.83%

382 60 Marina Transfer 0 0 0.00% 51,111 12,778 25.00%

382 80 Sunrise Theatre Transfer 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

382 90 Golf Course Transfer  0  0 0.00%  28,000  7,000 25.00%

Total Contribution from Enterprise Funds$  6,816,603 $  276,250 4.05% $  8,047,927 $  330,778 4.11%

 Total Revenue $  31,106,113 $  10,619,778 34.14% $  34,892,907 $  12,220,834 35.02%

Appropriated Fund Balance  1,219,933  0 0.00%  723,634  0 0.00%

Restricted Revenue  0  0 0.00% (1,508,000)  0 0.00%

TOTAL GENERAL FUND RESOURCES $  32,326,046 $  10,619,778 32.85% $  34,108,541 $  12,220,834 35.83%
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2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse
Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

City Commission

10 00 Personnel Services $ 242,281 $ 49,419 20.40% $ 195,636 $ 41,144 21.03%

Operating Expense 37,500 11,257 30.02% 35,000 11,323 32.35%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 279,781 $ 60,676 21.69% $ 230,636 $ 52,466 22.75%

City Manager

13 00 Personnel Services $ 458,855 $ 116,330 25.35% $ 556,342 $ 123,989 22.29%

Operating Expense 59,894 11,936 19.93% 60,594 16,139 26.64%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 518,749 $ 128,266 24.73% $ 616,936 $ 140,128 22.71%

City Attorney

14 00 Personnel Services $ 140,108 $ 32,333 23.08% $ 140,108 $ 32,333 23.08%

Operating Expense 477,500 45,363 9.50% 465,000 93,698 20.15%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 617,608 $ 77,696 12.58% $ 605,108 $ 126,030 20.83%

   

City Clerk

16 00 Personnel Services $ 268,247 $ 76,829 28.64% $ 254,389 $ 68,333 26.86%

Operating Expense 28,385 3,724 13.12% 26,385 6,350 24.07%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 296,632 $ 80,553 27.16% $ 280,774 $ 74,683 26.60%

Administrative Services

22 00 Personnel Services $ 583,565 $ 146,624 25.13% $ 557,369 $ 132,168 23.71%

Operating Expense 64,793 18,392 28.39% 64,793 11,484 17.72%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 648,358 $ 165,015 25.45% $ 622,162 $ 143,652 23.09%

 

GENERAL FUND - SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT
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2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse
Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Finance

24 00 Personnel Services $ 646,184 $ 168,650 26.10% $ 656,118 $ 168,723 25.72%

Operating Expense 40,200 10,255 25.51% 36,700 8,893 24.23%

Capital Outlay 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 686,384 $ 178,906 26.06% $ 692,818 $ 177,615 25.64%

 

Management Information Systems

25 00 Personnel Services $ 447,400 $ 122,662 27.42% $ 451,560 $ 127,803 28.30%

Operating Expense 468,900 122,849 26.20% 456,400 110,453 24.20%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 916,300 $ 245,511 26.79% $ 907,960 $ 238,255 26.24%

Planning

29 01 Personnel Services $ 566,364 $ 157,269 27.77% $ 417,879 $ 83,849 20.07%

Operating Expense 75,516 7,399 9.80% 69,016 7,125 10.32%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 641,880 $ 164,668 25.65% $ 486,895 $ 90,974 18.68%

Bldg & Community Response/Code Enforcement

29 03 Personnel Services $ 451,292 $ 116,278 25.77% $ 457,247 $ 117,301 25.65%

Operating Expense 321,200 164,914 51.34% 321,200 241,753 75.27%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 772,492 $ 281,192 36.40% $ 778,447 $ 359,054 46.12%

Police

Combined Personnel Services $ 10,391,115 $ 2,601,819 25.04% $ 10,834,768 $ 2,881,604 26.60%

Operating Expense 1,802,405 355,165 19.71% 1,802,405 360,690 20.01%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 12,193,520 $ 2,956,984 24.25% $ 12,637,173 $ 3,242,294 25.66%

GENERAL FUND - SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT
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2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse
Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Public Works/Director

40 02 Personnel Services $ 294,016 $ 79,683 27.10% $ 136,468 $ 35,383 25.93%

Operating Expense 51,200 12,954 25.30% 35,000 7,904 22.58%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 345,216 $ 92,637 26.83% $ 171,468 $ 43,287 25.25%

Public Works/Fleet Maintenance

40 03 Personnel Services $ 466,283 $ 110,464 23.69% $ 462,509 $ 92,499 20.00%

Operating Expense 58,550 2,991 5.11% 33,950 4,077 12.01%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 524,833 $ 113,454 21.62% $ 496,459 $ 96,575 19.45%

Public Works/Facilities Maintenance

40 04 Personnel Services $ 651,109 $ 166,917 25.64% $ 656,264 $ 163,877 24.97%

Operating Expense 336,000 69,255 20.61% 295,750 61,163 20.68%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 987,109 $ 236,172 23.93% $ 952,014 $ 225,040 23.64%

 

Public Works/Parks & Grounds

40 05 Personnel Services $ 1,134,570 $ 281,484 24.81% $ 1,177,925 $ 304,276 25.83%

Operating Expense 770,200 96,427 12.52% 745,200 141,357 18.97%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 1,904,770 $ 377,911 19.84% $ 1,923,125 $ 445,634 23.17%

Public Works/Streets & Drainage

4006 Personnel Services $ 959,378 $ 258,763 26.97% $ 922,278 $ 252,306 27.36%

Operating Expense 1,305,100 160,563 12.30% 1,271,950 209,751 16.49%

Capital Outlay 0 54,635 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 2,264,478 $ 473,960 20.93% $ 2,194,228 $ 462,057 21.06%

GENERAL FUND - SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT
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2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse
Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Engineering

44 00 Personnel Services $ 655,520 $ 179,881 27.44% $ 655,764 $ 181,489 27.68%

Operating Expense 389,830 39,888 10.23% 374,830 49,390 13.18%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 1,045,350 $ 219,769 21.02% $ 1,030,594 $ 230,878 22.40%

Riverwalk  Center

4504 Personnel Services $ 117,300 $ 30,702 26.17% $ 118,820 $ 30,839 25.95%  Adopted 

Operating Expense 37,750 12,665 33.55% 35,250 8,974 25.46% Adopted 

Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

$ 155,050 $ 43,366 27.97% $ 154,070 $ 39,813 25.84%
Administrative

60 00 Personnel Services $ 278,500 $ 66,442 23.86% $ 278,500 $ 9,550 3.43%

Operating Expense 3,084,427 2,079,102 67.41% 3,747,769 2,348,829 62.67%

Capital Outlay 175,000 3,136 1.79% 125,000 41,217 32.97%

Grants and Aid 150,000 162,440 108.29% 125,000 206,844 165.48%

Non-Oper. Transfer 3,839,610 73,429 1.91% 5,051,405 0.00%

$ 7,527,537 $ 2,384,549 31.68% $ 9,327,674 $ 2,606,440 27.94%

All Departments

Personnel Services $  18,752,087 $  4,762,548 25.40% $  18,929,944 $  4,847,464 25.61%

Operating Expense 9,409,350 3,225,099 34.28% 9,877,192 3,699,352 37.45%

Capital Outlay 175,000 57,771 33.01% 125,000 41,217 32.97%

Grants and Aid 150,000 162,440 108.29% 125,000 206,844 165.48%

Non-Oper. Transfer 3,839,610 73,429 1.91% 5,051,405 0 0.00%

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES $ 32,326,046 $ 8,281,287 25.62% $ 34,108,541 $ 8,794,877 25.78%

GENERAL FUND - SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT
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Fund Title: FPRA Department:

Fund/Division Number: Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Taxes

311 10 Ad Valorem Taxes $ 3,692,868 $ 3,678,558 99.61% $ 3,923,159 $ 3,913,443 99.75%

Total Taxes $ 3,692,868 $ 3,678,558 99.61% $ 3,923,159 $ 3,913,443 99.75%

Licenses and Permits

329 20 Lot Clearing $ 0 $ 686 0.00% $ 0 $ 2 0.00%

Total Licenses and Permits $ 0 $ 686 0.00% $ 0 $ 2 0.00%

Intergovernmental

334 90 EPA Brownfield $ 160,500 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

347 54 Marina Dockage 90,000 18,503 20.56% 85,000 18,109 21.30%

384 90 Other State Grants 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Intergovernmental $ 250,500 $ 18,503 7.39% $ 85,000 $ 18,109 21.30%

Miscellaneous Revenue

343 91 Admin Charge - Liens $ 0 $ 8 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

361 10 Interest on Investments 100 544 546.19% 100 910 913.07%

362 14 Leases 90,000 21,655 24.06% 95,000 23,108 24.32%

363 10 Liens 0 356 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

366 90 FPAT 0 1,500 0.00% 0 600 0.00%

369 31 Reimburse - Expenditures 0 12,858 0.00% 0 11,204 0.00%

369 40 Reimburse - Contract Svcs. 0 0 0.00% 0 660,700 0.00%

369 31 Other Misc. Revenues 5,000 0 0.00% 5,000 7,120 0.00%

388 10 Sale of Land 0 0 0.00% 432,100 0 0.00%

Total Miscellaneous Revenues $ 95,100 $ 36,922 38.82% $ 532,200 $ 703,641 132.21%

Transfers

381 01 Transfer from General Fund $ 1,410,793 $ 0 0.00% $ 1,689,274 $ 0 0.00%

Total Transfers $ 1,410,793 $ 0 0.00% $ 1,689,274 $ 0 0.00%

Total Revenues $ 5,449,261 $ 3,734,669 68.54% $ 6,229,633  $ 4,635,194 74.41%

Prior Year Carry-Overs Operating $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

TOTAL RESOURCES $ 5,449,261 $ 3,734,669 68.54% $ 6,229,633 $ 4,635,194 74.41%

FPRA

* Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Fu Funded Authorized Authorized Fu Funded Authorized Authorized Fu Funded Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Neighbo Authorized Authorized Fund Funded Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized 
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Fund Title: FPRA  Department:

Fund/Division Number:  Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Total Personnel Services $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

Total Operating Expense 301,000 81,932 27.22% 296,500 112,109 37.81%

Total Capital Outlay 160,500 11,021 6.87% 0 660,700 0.00%

Total Grants - Programs & Projects 20,000 0 0.00% 20,000 0 0.00%

Total Transfers 4,967,760 0 0.00% 5,913,033 87,500 1.48%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 5,449,260 $ 92,953 1.71% $ 6,229,533 $ 860,309 13.81%

 

FPRA
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Fund Title: Urban Redevelopment Department:

Fund/Division Number: Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse
Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

CDBG REVENUE

331 50 Disaster Relief $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

331 90 Entitlement Grant 485,698 0 0.00% 513,000 5,862 1.14%

331 91 CDBG-R 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

331 92 Program Income 27,460 0 0.00% 5,000 2,064 41.28%

369 90 Miscellaneous Revenue 0 0 0.00% 0 304 0.00%

361 39 Other Interest Earnings 3,500 309 8.84% 3,000 1,283 42.77%

369 31 Reimb. of Expenditures 0 0 0.00% 0 83,200 0.00%

369 41 Contractual Svcs./CDBG 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Carry Over Funding 725,000 0 0.00% 701,372 0 0.00%

Total CDBG REVENUE $ 1,241,658 $ 309 0.02% $ 1,222,372 $ 92,713 7.58%

CDBG, SHIP, NSP
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Fund Title: Department of Urban Redevelopment 

Fund/Division Number:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

CDBG Department

Administrative

10 10 Personnel Services $ 69,043 $ 18,495 26.79% $ 65,000 $ 36,488 56.14%

34 90 Administrative-Contractual 0 6,676 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

49 60 Administrative Expenses 28,096 371 1.32% 36,265 11,036 30.43%

Rehabilitation Department

83 10 Housing Rehabilitation $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

83 20 Emergecy Rehab. 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

83 30 Senior Citizens Housing 0 0 0.00% 37,500 0 0.00%

83 40 Other Grants & Aids 0 16,500 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

83 82 Code Enforcement 60,000 0 0.00% 60,000 0 0.00%

Economic Development

83 80 Lincoln Park Mainstreet $ 50,000 $ 0 0.00% $ 50,000 $ 12,500 25.00%

83 80 Fort Pierce Mainstreet 50,000 12,500 25.00% 50,000 25,000 50.00%

83 83 Economic Tourism Development 105,000 0 0.00% 105,000 0 0.00%

83 84 Minority Business Development 52,502 0 0.00% 57,235 0 0.00%

83 86 Historic Neigh/Public Art 24,519 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Public Service

83 97 Project Energy Cons/Public Fac. $ 17,498 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

83 98 Youth and Children Projects 60,000 0 0.00% 60,000 670 1.12%

Total CDBG $ 516,658 $ 54,541 10.56% $ 521,000 $ 85,694 16.45%

Prior Grants-Programs & Projects   

83 10 Housing Rehabilitation (Roll-over) $ 395,375 $ 0 0.00% $ 285,757 $ 0 0.00%

83 30 Senior Citizen Security 0 0 0.00% 10,000 0 0.00%

83 83 Economic Tourism Development 91,023 0 0.00% 142,524 0 0.00%

83 83 ED Manufacturing of Business 64,351 0 0.00% 64,321 0 0.00%

83 85 Art In Public Places 20,000 0 0.00% 20,000 0 0.00%

83 86 Historic Neigh/Public Art 64,251 0 0.00% 88,770 0 0.00%

83 86 St. Anastasia School Building 90,000 0 0.00% 90,000 0 0.00%

Total Roll-Over Expenditures $ 725,000 $ 0 0.00% $ 701,372 $ 0 0.00%

Total CDBG-R $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

TOTAL CDBG APPROPRIATIONS $ 1,241,658 $ 54,541 4.39% $ 1,222,372 $ 85,694 7.01%

Proposed Budget for Fiscal 2013/14

CDBG, SHIP, NSP 
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Fund Title: Department of Urban Redevelopment 

Fund/Division Number:

Proposed Budget for Fiscal 2013/14

CDBG, SHIP, NSP 

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Section 108 & BEDI

331 93 BEDI Grant $ 60,248 $ 39,818 66.09% $ 81,600 $ 20,157 24.70%

331 94 Section 108 Loan 283,000 0 0.00% 283,000 0 0.00%

361 10 Interest on Investments 520 146 28.12% 300 102 34.11%

361 40 Other Interest BEDI Account 2,000 83,621 4181.03% 1,500 18,170 1211.33%

361 40 Other Interest Section 108 0 0 0.00% 71,256 0 0.00%

Total Section 108 & BEDI $ 345,768 $ 123,585 35.74% $ 437,656 $ 38,429 8.78%

Section 108 & BEDI

Expenditures

49 60 Administrative $ 100 $ 0 0.00% $ 100 $ 0 0.00%

Debt Service

70 10 Principal $ 283,000 $ 0 0.00% $ 283,000 $ 0 0.00%

70 20 Interest 62,668 0 0.00% 61,551 0 0.00%

TOTAL SECTION 108 & BEDI $ 345,768 $ 0 0.00% $ 344,651 $ 0 0.00%

SHIP REVENUES

344 90 SHIP $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 74,449 $ 0 0.00%

 334 50 Program Income 1,500 0 0.00% 62,000 0 0.00%

361 10 Interest on Investments 700 134 19.14% 700 101 14.46%

369 90 Other Misc. Revenues 4,000 0 0.00% 4,000 0 0.00%

381 90 Program Income HHR 100,000 18,158 18.16% 30,000 0 0.00%

 Carry Over Funding 65,000 0 0.00% 100,000 0 0.00%

Total SHIP Revenue $ 171,200 $ 18,292 10.68% $ 271,149 $ 101 0.04%

SHIP EXPENDITURES

Total Operating Expenses $ 5,310 $ 281 5.29% $ 2,233 $ 1,220 54.64%

Total Grants-Programs &Projects 165,890 428 0.26% 268,916 0 0.00%

TOTAL SHIP APPROPRIATIONS $ 171,200 $ 709 0.41% $ 271,149 $ 1,220 0.45%
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Fund Title: Department of Urban Redevelopment 

Fund/Division Number:

Proposed Budget for Fiscal 2013/14

CDBG, SHIP, NSP 

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

NSP REVENUE

331 50 NSP Grant $ 320,000 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

364 22 Sale of Surplus Land 0 0 0.00% 0 96,754 0.00%

Total NSP REVENUE $ 320,000 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 96,754 0.00%

NSP EXPENDITURES

Total Operating Expenses $ 16,000 $ 1,325 0.00% $ 0 $ 90,439 0.00%

Total Grants-Program & Projects 304,000 5,907 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total NSP REVENUE $ 320,000 $ 7,232 0.00% $ 0 $ 90,439 0.00%

Emergency Services Grant Fund

331 50 Wind Mitigation (Windows) $ 1,426,972 $ 112,631 7.89% $ 4,365,165 $ 0 0.00%

Total Grant Funds $ 1,426,972 $ 112,631 7.89% $ 4,365,165 $ 0 0.00%

Emergency Services Grant Fund Exp.

Administrative $ 13,347 $ 11,350 85.04% $ 34,149 $ 1 0.00%

Consultant Fees 0 0 0.00% 144,007 401,681 278.93%

Project Management 30,000 0 0.00% 169,350 0 0.00%

Buildings/Windows 1,383,625 878,861 63.52% 4,017,659 0 0.00%

TOTAL EMERG. MGMNT APPROPRIATIONS $ 1,426,972 $ 890,212 62.38% $ 4,365,165 $ 401,682 9.20%

  * Authorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Funded Authorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Funde FAuthorized Authorized Funde FAuthorized Authorized Funde FAuthorized Authorized Funded FNeigh Authorized Authorized Funded FAuthorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized  
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Fund Title: Urban Redevelopment Department:

Fund/Division Number: Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Licenses and Permits

331 50 NSP Grant $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

334 50 Program Income 70,000 12,385 17.69% 70,000 11,271 16.10%

Total Licenses and Permits $ 70,000 $ 12,385 0.00% $ 70,000 $ 11,271 0.00%

Miscellaneous Revenue

361 10 Interest on Investments $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 40 0.00%

361 38 HHRP Loan 30,000 5,773 19.24% 30,000 4,808 16.03%

362 30 Miscellaneous 0 26,324 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

369 33 Escrow Reimbursement 0 0 0.00% 18,000 17,778 98.77%

334 90 Hardest Hit 20,000 2,550 12.75% 0 0 0.00%

369 41 Contractual Svcs./FPRA 65,630 0 0.00% 25,000 0 0.00%

369 41 Contractual Svcs./CDBG 28,096 0 0.00% 65,000 0 0.00%

369 41 Contractual Svcs./FEMA 75,000 0 0.00% 15,000 0 0.00%

369 41 Contractual Svcs./FEMA Windws 0 0 0.00% 34,149 0 0.00%

369 41 Contractual Svcs./NSP 16,000 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

369 41 Contractual Svcs./SHIP 5,310 0 0.00% 7,233 0 0.00%

369 90 Other Misc. Revenues 0 19,342 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Miscellaneous Revenues $ 240,036 $ 53,989 22.49% $ 194,382 $ 22,626 11.64%

Interfund Transfer

381 10 General Fund $ 60,000 $ 0 0.00% $ 22,076 $ 0 0.00%

Total Interfund Transfers $ 60,000 $ 0 0.00% $ 22,076 $ 0 0.00%

Total Revenues $ 370,036 $ 66,373 17.94% $ 286,458  $ 33,897 11.83%

TOTAL RESOURCES $ 370,036 $ 66,373 17.94% $ 286,458 $ 33,897 11.83%

Grant Administration
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Fund Title: Urban Redevlopment  Department:

Fund/Division Number:  Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse
Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Total Personnel Services $ 487,730 $ 125,148 25.66% $ 166,458 $ 0 0.00%

Total Operating Expense 6,200 20,463 330.04% 20,000 40,744 203.72%

Total Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Grants - Private Orgs. 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Grants - Programs & Projects 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Transfers 100,000 18,158 0.00% 100,000 0 0.00%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 593,930 $ 163,769 27.57% $ 286,458 $ 40,744 14.22%

 

Grant Administration
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1ST QUARTER 1ST QUARTER

12/31/2012 12/31/2013

OPERATING INCOME

CHARGES FOR SERVICES $ 158,274 $ 162,428

MISCELLANEOUS 270,439 153,507

GRANTS 2,775,022 251,131

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME $ 3,203,735 $ 567,066

OPERATING EXPENSES

PERSONAL SERVICES $ 90,563 $ 89,819

ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 41,579 15,550

CONTRACTUAL FEES 28,830 30,176

UTILITIES 15,486 14,443

COST OF GOODS SOLD 183,094 68,598

DEPRECIATION 102,606 79,760

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 77,636 111,749

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 539,793 $ 410,096

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 2,663,942 $ 156,971

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS $ 2,693 $ 1,727

TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 0

OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUES 0 0

$ 2,693 $ 1,727

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

DEBT SERVICE 344 $ 405

OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 0 2,196

TRANSFER-OUT 0 12,778

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $ 344 $ 15,379

NET NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 2,349 ($13,652)

NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 2,666,291 $ 143,319

CITY OF FORT PIERCE

MARINA FUND   (401)

OPERATING STATEMENT 

DECEMBER 31, 2013

1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '12 to 1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '13 COMPARISON
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Fund Title: Marina  Department: Marina

Fund/Division Number: Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Grants

331 50 Disaster Relief/Federal $20,000,000 $ 346,711 1.73% $12,000,000 $ 251,131 2.09%

334 39 Physical Environmental Grant 63,267 0 0.00% 47,334 0 0.00%

334 50 Disaster Relief 1,079,020 38,303 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Grants $ 21,142,287 $ 385,014 1.82% $ 12,047,334 $ 251,131 2.08%

Charges for Services

347 54 Dockage $ 476,288 $ 123,241 25.88% $ 450,000 $ 126,107 28.02%

347 55 Transient Dockage 180,000 35,033 19.46% 180,000 36,321 20.18%

Total Charges for Services $ 656,288 $ 158,274 24.12% $ 630,000 $ 162,428 25.78%

Miscellaneous Revenue

361 10 Interest Earnings $ 20,000 $ 2,692 13.46% $ 10,000 $ 1,727 17.27%

361 20 Interest of SBA 0 0 0.00% 2,000 0 0.00%

362 14 Leases 34,000 8,613 25.33% 34,000 8,568 25.20%

362 15 Tiki Lease 180,000 24,569 13.65% 180,000 24,894 13.83%

369 31 Reimbursement of Expenditures 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

369 70 Events 5,000 0 0.00% 2,000 0 0.00%

369 90 Other Misc. Revenues 2,500 331 13.23% 2,500 307 12.30%

369 91 Gas and Oil Sales 825,074 182,541 22.12% 845,000 65,801 7.79%

369 92 Electric Utility Sales 73,000 16,340 22.38% 73,000 17,853 24.46%

369 93 Utility Fees 18,000 3,555 19.75% 14,000 3,624 25.88%

369 94 Soda, Candy & Ice Sales 120,000 31,006 25.84% 148,000 28,513 19.27%

369 95 Commissions 800 0 0.00% 800 0 0.00%

369 96 Late Payment Charges 1,500 125 8.33% 1,500 400 26.67%

369 97 Live Aboards 13,500 3,043 22.54% 13,500 3,328 24.65%

369 98 Other Miscellaneous Revenues 2,500 317 12.69% 2,500 218 8.74%

Total Miscellaneous Revenue $ 1,295,874 $ 273,131 21.08% $ 1,328,800 $ 155,234 11.68%

Total Revenue $ 23,094,449 $ 816,420 3.54% $ 14,006,134 $ 568,793 4.06%

Appropriated Retained Earnings 0 0 0.00% 345,008 0 0.00%

TOTAL RESOURCES $ 23,094,449 $ 816,420 3.54% $ 14,351,142 $ 568,793 3.96%
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Fund Title: Marina  Department: Marina

Fund/Division Number: Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Total Personnel Services $ 370,064 $ 90,563 24.47% $ 339,119 $ 89,819 26.49%

Total Operating Expense 1,833,736 449,230 24.50% 1,877,057 320,276 17.06%

Total Capital Outlay 21,171,787 2,775,022 13.11% 12,415,000 518,192 4.17%

Total Debt Service 146,350 0 0.00% 96,343 0 0.00%

Total Non-Operating Expenses 1,800 344 19.10% 52,911 15,379 29.07%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 23,523,737 $ 3,315,159 14.09% $ 14,780,430 $ 943,666 6.38%
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1ST QUARTER 1ST QUARTER

12/31/2012 12/31/2013

OPERATING INCOME

CHARGES FOR SERVICES $ 1,535,352 $ 1,540,534

MISCELLANEOUS 1,831 6,377

GRANTS 0 0

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME $ 1,537,182 $ 1,546,911

OPERATING EXPENSES

PERSONAL SERVICES $ 553,271 $ 511,198

ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 41,328 51,264

LANDFILL CHARGES 295,360 229,057

DEPRECIATION 114,825 105,016

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 283,596 266,791

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 1,288,380 $ 1,163,327

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 248,802 $ 383,584

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS $ 614 $ 910

TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 0

OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUES 0 0

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES $ 614 $ 910

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $ 0 $ 0

TRANSFER-OUT 296,250 311,000

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $ 296,250 $ 311,000

NET NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ($295,636) ($310,090)

NET INCOME (LOSS) ($46,834) $ 73,494

CITY OF FORT PIERCE

SOLID WASTE FUND   (402)

OPERATING STATEMENT 

December 31, 2013

1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '12 to 1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '13 COMPARISON
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Fund Title: Solid Waste Fund  Department: Solid Waste

Fund/Division Number: 402-0000 Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Charges for Services

343 40 Residential Service $ 2,500,000 $ 644,991 25.80% $ 2,500,000 $ 651,796 26.07%

343 41 Commercial Service 3,200,000 788,890 24.65% 3,200,000 786,030 24.56%

343 42 Residential Trash 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

343 43 Commercial Trash 15,000 26,408 176.05% 85,000 26,301 30.94%

343 44 Recycling 260,000 75,063 28.87% 290,000 76,010 26.21%

343 45 Other Income 0 0 0.00% 0 397 0.00%

343 46 Recycling Program 0 0 0.00% 3,600 0 0.00%

Total Charges for Services $ 5,975,000 $ 1,535,352 25.70% $ 6,078,600 $ 1,540,534 25.34%

Miscellaneous Revenue

361 10 Interest on Investments $ 4,000 $ 614 15.36% $ 4,000 $ 910 22.74%

361 20 Interest of SBA 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

364 41 Sale of Surplus 0 1,830 0.00% 0 5,876 0.00%

366 90 Other Contirbutions/Donations 0 0 0.00% 0 501 0.00%

Total Miscellaneous Revenue $ 4,000 $ 2,445 61.12% $ 4,000 $ 7,287 182.17%

Total Revenues $ 5,979,000 $ 1,537,796 25.72% $ 6,082,600 $ 1,547,821 25.45%

Appropriated Retained Earnings 622,100 0 0.00% 457,024 0 0.00%

TOTAL RESOURCES $ 6,601,100 $ 1,537,796 23.30% $ 6,539,624 $ 1,547,821 23.67%
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Fund Title: Solid Waste Fund Department: Solid Waste

Fund/Division Number: 402-4200-534 Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Total Personnel Services $ 1,987,037 $ 553,271 27.84% $ 1,902,959 $ 511,198 26.86%

Total Operating Expense 3,607,063 735,109 20.38% 3,305,665 652,129 19.73%

Total Capital Outlay 402,000 255,141 63.47% 627,000 28,229 4.50%

Total Non-Operating Expense 1,105,000 296,250 26.81% 1,204,000 311,000 25.83%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 7,101,100 $ 1,839,771 25.91% $ 7,039,624 $ 1,502,556 21.34%
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1ST QUARTER 1ST QUARTER

12/31/2012 12/31/2013

OPERATING INCOME

CHARGES FOR SERVICES $ 285,039 $ 275,720

MISCELLANEOUS 27,775 27,980

GRANTS 0 0

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME $ 312,814 $ 303,700

OPERATING EXPENSES

PERSONAL SERVICES $ 166,978 $ 151,848

ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 11,310 13,119

CONTRACTUAL FEES 21,699 29,483

UTILITIES 17,254 12,678

COST OF GOODS SOLD 19,908 22,109

DEPRECIATION 38,338 35,961

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 139,162 106,232

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 414,649 $ 371,431

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ($101,835) ($67,731)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS $ 18 $ 0

TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS 20,000 0

OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUES 0 0

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES $ 20,018 $ 0

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $ 0 $ 644

TRANSFER-OUT 0 7,000

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $ 0 $ 7,644

NET NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 20,018 ($7,644)

NET INCOME (LOSS) ($81,817) ($75,375)

CITY OF FORT PIERCE

GOLF COURSE   (405)

OPERATING STATEMENT 

DECEMBER 31, 2013

1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '12 to 1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '13 COMPARISON
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Fund Title: Golf Course Fund Department: Golf Course

Fund/Division Number: 405 0000 Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25%  Adopted Actual 25%

Charges for Services

347 20 Membership Dues $ 50,000 $ 20,186 40.37% $ 10,000 $ 3,350 33.50%

347 22 Other Memberships 0 0 0.00% 40,000 20,451 51.13%

347 24 Golf Fees 1,380,184 257,407 18.65% 1,273,000 245,377 19.28%

347 25 Driving Range 40,000 7,446 18.61% 42,000 6,541 15.57%

Total Charges for Services $ 1,470,184 $ 285,039 19.39% $ 1,365,000 $ 275,720 20.20%

Miscellaneous Revenue

361 10 Interest Earnings $ 250 $ 18 7.30% $ 250 $ 0 0.00%

369 25 Pro Shop Merchandise 45,000 9,558 21.24% 46,000 9,371 20.37%

369 80 Food 25,000 5,108 20.43% 26,000 4,957 19.06%

369 89 Packaged Sales 35,000 7,259 20.74% 36,500 8,279 22.68%

369 90 Misc Revenues 5,000 1,024 20.47% 5,000 1,150 23.01%

369 94 Snacks & Beverages 28,000 4,826 17.24% 28,000 4,223 15.08%

369 98 Other Misc Revenues 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Miscellaneous Revenue $ 138,250 $ 27,793 20.10% $ 141,750 $ 27,980 19.74%

Transfers

381 01 Transfer from General Fund $ 0 $0 0.00% $ 0 $0 0.00%

382 50 Transfer from Solid Waste 0 20,000 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Transfers $0 $ 20,000 0.00% $0 $ 0 0.00%

Total Revenues $ 1,608,434 $ 332,832 20.69% $ 1,506,750 $ 303,700 20.16%

Appropriated Retained Earnings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL RESOURCES $ 1,608,434 $ 332,832 20.69% $ 1,506,750 $ 303,700 20.16%

 

* Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Neighbo Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorized 
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Fund Title: Golf Course Fund Department: Golf Course

Fund/Division Number: 405-4500-572 Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Total Personnel Services $ 680,170 $ 166,978 24.55% $ 618,727 $ 151,848 24.54%

Total Operating Expense 1,084,264 247,671 22.84% 1,016,023 219,584 21.61%

Total Capital Outlay 14,000 32,000 228.57% 14,000 0 0.00%

Total Non-Operating Expense 0 0 0.00% 28,000 7,644 0.00%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 1,778,434 $ 446,649 25.11% $ 1,676,750 $ 379,075 22.61%
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1ST QUARTER 1ST QUARTER

12/31/2012 12/31/2013

OPERATING INCOME

CHARGES FOR SERVICES $ 1,427,492 $ 1,501,098

MISCELLANEOUS 42,372 48,665

GRANTS 9,463 0

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME $ 1,479,327 $ 1,549,762

OPERATING EXPENSES

PERSONAL SERVICES $ 137,825 $ 147,768

ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 32,952 35,106

CONTRACTUAL FEES 69,172 80,612

UTILITIES 28,842 28,553

COST OF EVENTS 402,811 466,809

ADVERTISING 106,374 117,580

DEPRECIATION 140,370 136,541

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 138,615 135,127

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 1,056,960 $ 1,148,096

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 422,367 $ 401,666

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS $ 165 $ 410

TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 111,648

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES $ 165 $ 112,059

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

DEBT SERVICE $ 0 $ 0

OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 0 0

TRANSFER-OUT 0 0

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $ 0 $ 0

NET NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 165 $ 112,059

NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 422,533 $ 513,725

CITY OF FORT PIERCE

SUNRISE THEATRE   (406)

OPERATING STATEMENT 

DECEMBER 31, 2013

1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '12 to 1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '13 COMPARISON
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Fund Title: Sunrise Theatre Fund Department: Sunrise Theatre

Fund/Division Number: 406 0000 Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Charges for Services

347 56 10 Ticket Sales $ 1,734,137 $ 1,194,255 68.87% $ 2,200,000 $ 1,148,424 52.20%

347 56 11 Ticket Sales - Rentals 425,000 185,449 43.64% 255,000 258,594 101.41%

347 56 15 Ticket Handling Fees 69,500 30,878 44.43% 89,500 77,260 86.32%

347 56 50 Sponsorship Fees 25,000 750 3.00% 35,000 5,000 14.29%

347 56 80 Memberships 140,000 15,876 11.34% 130,000 11,070 8.52%

347 56 90 Donations & Pledges 258,869 284 0.11% 24,000 750 3.12%

Total Charges for Services $ 2,652,506 $ 1,427,492 53.82% $ 2,733,500 $ 1,501,098 54.91%

Grants

347 70 10 DCF/State Grant $ 0 $ 9,463 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

Total Grants $ 0 $ 9,463 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

Miscellaneous Revenue

361 10 00 Interest Earning $ 600  $ 165 27.50% $ 400 $ 410 102.61%

362 14 00 Rents and Royalties 85,000 4,504 5.30% 48,000 12,251 25.52%

369 31 00 Reimb. of Expenditures 7,500 300 4.00% 0 0 0.00%

369 70 00 Events 18,000 0 0.00% 22,500 0 0.00%

369 80 00 Food & Beverages 21,000 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

369 89 00 Packaged Sales 105,000 35,883 34.17% 140,000 34,828 24.88%

369 90 00 Miscellaneous Revenues 1,500 60 4.00% 400 69 17.20%

369 95 00 Commission/Tips/Merch. 8,500 1,626 19.13% 6,500 1,517 23.33%

369 96 00 Late Payment Charges 500 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Miscellaneous Revenues $ 247,600 $ 42,537 17.18% $ 217,800 $ 49,075 22.53%

Other Resources

381 01 00 Transfer from General $ 0  $ 0 0.00% $ 0  $ 24,148 0.00%

381 91 00 Transfer from FPRA 400000  0 0.00% 350,000  87,500 25.00%

Total Other Resources $ 400,000 $ 0 0.00% $ 350,000 $ 111,648 31.90%

  TOTAL RESOURCES $ 3,300,106 $ 1,479,492 44.83% $ 3,301,300 $ 1,661,821 50.34%
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Fund Title: Sunrise Theatre Fund Department: Sunrise Theatre

Fund/Division Number: 406-4600-575 Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse  2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25%  Adopted Actual 25%

Total Personnel Services $ 601,706 $ 137,825 22.91% $ 532,245 $ 147,768 27.76%

Total Operating Expense 3,254,605 919,135 28.24% 3,324,760 1,000,325 30.09%

Total Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 500 0 0.00%

Total Transfers 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 3,856,311 $ 1,056,960 27.41% $ 3,857,505 $ 1,148,093 29.76%
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1ST QUARTER  

12/31/2012

1ST QUARTER  

12/31/2013

OPERATING INCOME

LICENSE and PERMIT $ 229,311 $ 216,637

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 2,259 3,356

MISCELLANEOUS 4,920

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME $ 236,491 $ 219,993

OPERATING EXPENSES

PERSONAL SERVICES $ 190,591 $ 196,370

ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 19,419 22,401

CONTRACTUAL FEES 3,986 4,916

DEPRECIATION 2,799 1,141

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 27,759 29,446

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 244,553 $ 254,275

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ($8,062) ($34,282)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS $ 79 $ 93

TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS 0 0

OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUES 0 6,137

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES $ 79 $ 6,230

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

DEBT SERVICE $ 0 $ 0

OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 0 0

TRANSFER-OUT 0 0

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $ 0 $ 0

NET NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 79 $ 6,230

NET INCOME (LOSS) ($7,984) ($28,053)

CITY OF FORT PIERCE

BUILDING & CODE (420)

OPERATING STATEMENT 

DECEMBER 31, 2013
1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '12 to 1st QUARTER-DECEMBER '13 COMPARISON
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Fund Title: Building & Code Department: Building Inspection  

Fund/Division Number: 420-2902-524 Division:

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Licenses and Permits

322 10 Permits-Building Dept. $ 498,000 $ 137,950 27.70% $ 550,000 $ 116,739 21.23%

322 20 Inspections 15,000            3,675 24.50% 15,000           2,575 17.17%

322 90 Other Permit Fees 360,000          80,417            22.34% 372,313         90,858         24.40%

329 40 Contractor's License 50,000            7,270              14.54% 50,000           6,465           12.93%

Total Licenses and Permits $ 923,000 $ 229,311 24.84% $ 987,313 $ 216,637 21.94%

Charge for Services

341 40 Cert.,Copying, Rcd. Search $ 500 $ 175 35.06% $ 1,000 $ 455 45.51%

341 60 Administration Fees 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

341 61 Demo & Flood Plain Mgmnt 0 0 0.00% 12,500 0 0.00%

341 94 Credti Card Process Fees 6,094 2,084 34.20% 10,000 2,901 29.01%

Total Charges for Service $ 6,594 $ 2,259 0.00% $ 23,500 $ 3,356 0.00%

Fines & Forfeits

354 60 Unlicensed Contracting $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 5,000 $ 0 0.00%

Total Fines & Forfeits $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 5,000 $ 0 0.00%

Miscellaneous Revenue

361 10 Interest on Investments $ 0 $ 79 0.00% $ 0 $ 93 0.00%

369 00 Miscellaneous Revenues 17,000 4,920 28.94% 17,000 6,137 36.10%

Total Miscellaneous Revenues $ 17,000 $ 4,999 0.00% $ 17,000 $ 6,230 0.00%

Interfund Transfers

381 10 General Fund $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

TOTAL Interfund Tarnsfers $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

Appropriated Retained Earnings $ 0 $ 0 0.00% $ 0 $ 0 0.00%

TOTAL RESOURCES $ 946,594 $ 236,570 24.99% $ 1,032,813 $ 226,223 21.90%
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Fund Title: Building & Code Department: Building Inspection

Fund/Division Number: 420-2902-524 Division:  

2012/13 2012/13 Yr. Lapse 2013/14 2013/14 Yr. Lapse

Adopted Actual 25% Adopted Actual 25%

Total Personnel Services $ 732,909 $ 190,591 26.00%  $ 748,313 $ 196,370 26.24%

Total Operating Expense 213,685 53,962 25.25% 297,000 57,905 19.50%

Total Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Transfers 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 946,594 $ 244,553 25.84% $ 1,045,313 $ 254,275 24.33%
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CASH AND INVESTMENT REPORT

 

 October 1, Estimated Beg. Available Resources 3,651

Revenues 4,635,194

Available Resources 4,638,845

Expenditures 860,309

Current Available Resources 3,778,537

FPRA Operating Budget Budget Revised Expended Balance

Resources and Uses Adjust. Budget

Current Resousces Available for Operating 3,778,537

Plus Unrealized Revenue:

302 Marina Dockage 67,000

303 Leases 72,000

304 Sale of Land 432,000

305 Transfer From General 1,689,274

Total Unrealized Revenue 2,260,274

Estimated Resources Available 

For Operating
6,038,811

Less Outstanding Expenditures:

501 Personnel Services 0 0 0 0 0

502 Operating Expenditures 296,500 0 296,500 112,109 184,391

503 Capital Outlay 0 (660,700) (660,700) 660,700 0

504 Total Grants-Private Organ. 20,000 0 20,000 0 20,000

505 Transfers 5,563,033 0 5,563,033 0 5,563,033

506 Sunrise Theatre 350,000 0 350,000 87,500 262,500

Categories Balances 6,229,533 (660,700) 5,568,833 860,309 6,029,924

Projected Resources Over (Short) 8,887

FORT PIERCE REDEVELOPMENT FUND

OPERATING FUND

1ST Quarter Report

December 31, 2013
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CASH AND INVESTMENT REPORT

 October 1, Estimated Beg. Available Resources 171,305

Revenues 196

Available Resources 171,501

Expenditures 0

Current Available Resources 171,501

Project Accounting Budget Budget Revised Expended Project 

Adjust. Budget Balance

Project Funding Available 171,501

Plus:

Refund from FDOT  for Harbor Isle 203,000

Total Unrealized Revenue 203,000

Estimated Resources Available For 

Projects
374,501

Less Outstanding Projects:

* 501 Moore's Creek Park 673,617 673,617 219,737 453,880

502 A1A Lighting/Landscape 473,823 (189,288) 284,535 284,535 0

503 Northwest Pioneer Park 880,772 (5,729) 875,043 875,043 0

504 Ave D Bus Terminal 750,000 (361,036) 388,964 388,964 0

505 Land & Fill 100,000 100,000 100,000 0

506 Fisherman's Wharf 10,750 10,750 10,750 0

507 A1A (Phase 1) Underground Electric 1,260,000 (324,065) 935,935 935,935 0

508 Avenue Q Sewer Project 65,000 (2,353) 62,647 62,647 0

509 Harbor Isle Roundabout 203,623 203,623 203,623 0

510 Jetty 75,000 1,101 76,101 76,101 0

Projects Balances 4,492,585 (881,370) 3,611,215 3,157,335 453,880

Resources Over (Short) (79,379)

* Note:  The  $453,880 will not be paid until funding is available.

FORT PIERCE REDEVELOPMENT FUND

CONSTRUCTION FUND 

1ST QUARTER REPORT

December 31, 2013
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001 401 402 405 406 420

General Marina Solid  Sunrise Building

Waste Course Theatre Code

Estimated Avail. Resources Sept. 30, 2013 4,180,641 4,264,155 1,170,047 (75,000) (88,260) 32,923

Less:

10% Budget Reserve (3,410,854)

2014 Budget Appropriation (723,634) (345,008) (457,024)

10/01/2013  Unrestricted Resources 46,153 3,919,147 713,023 (75,000) (88,260) 32,923

1st Quarter Revenues 12,220,834 568,793 1,547,821 303,699 1,661,821 226,222

2014 Budget Appropriation 723,634 345,008 622,100

2015 Budget Appropriation (1,508,000) 0 0 0

 

10/01/13 thru 12/31/13  Resources 11,436,468 913,801 2,169,921 303,699 1,661,821 226,222

1st Quarter Expenses 8,794,877 943,666 1,502,556 379,075 1,148,093 254,275

Less  Accum. Depreciation (79,759) (105,016) (35,961) (136,541) (1,141)

Total Uses 8,794,877 863,907 1,397,540 343,114 1,011,552 253,134

FY 2014 Net Resources 2,641,591 49,894 772,381 (39,415) 650,269 (26,912)

Total Resources Available 2,687,744 3,969,041 1,485,404 (114,415) 562,009 6,011

City of Fort Pierce 

Financial Position/Resources and Uses

December 31, 2013

1st Quarter Fiscal 2014
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***
104 304 103 105 107 106 199

CRA CRA CDBG SHIP NSP Grant Admin Emergency

HHR Services

Bond Fund

Estimated Avail. Resource Sept. 30, 2013 3,651 171,305 685,481 76,623 0 72,572 0

Less:

Reserve

Budget Appropriation

3,651 171,305 685,481 76,623 0 72,572 0

1st Quarter Revenues 4,635,194 195 131,142 101 96,754 33,897 0

10/01/13 thru 12/31/13  Resources 4,635,194 195 131,142 101 96,754 33,897 0

1st Quarter Expenses 860,309 0 85,693 1,220 90,439 40,744 401,682

Total Uses 860,309 0 85,693 1,220 90,439 40,744 401,682

FY 2014 Net Resources 3,774,885 195 45,449 (1,119) 6,315 (6,847) (401,682)

Total Resources Available 3,778,536 171,500 730,930 75,504 6,315 65,725 (401,682)

10/01/2013  Restricted (***) and  

Unrestricted Resources

City of Fort Pierce 

Urban Redevelopment

Financial Position/Resources and Uses

December 31, 2013

1st Quarter Fiscal 2014
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City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   12. a.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Approval of Communitywide Council Volunteer
Submitted For: Libby Woodruff, Grant Writer, Urban Redevelopment 

SUBJECT:
Submittal of Applications for appointment to the Communitywide Council to fill one (1) regular
member vacancy.

SUMMARY:
The Communitywide Council (CWC) currently has one (1) regular voting member vacancy and
four (4) alternate member vacancies.

RECOMMENDATION:
The appointment of one (1) volunteer to serve as a Regular Voting Member of the
Communitywide Council: Irene A. Szedlmayer, for one two-year term, in accordance with the
Citizen Participation Plan.

ALTERNATIVES:
Do not appoint the candidate.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Libby Woodruff, Grants Administrator

COORDINATED WITH:
Nicholas Mimms, Deputy City Manager

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
None

Attachments
CWC Application - Irene Szedlmayer





   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   12. b.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Application submittals for the Board of Examiners of Contractors
Submitted For: Marc Meyers, Building Official, Building 

SUBJECT:
Submittal of Applications for reappointment to the Board of Examiners of Contractors

SUMMARY:
There are two (2) members whose terms expire on February 28, 2014. The applications for
re-appointment are for: Don Bergman and Ken Waters. Appointments will be for a four (4) year
term

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the City Commission accept all the applications

ALTERNATIVES:
Deny the applications

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Marc Meyers, Building Official

COORDINATED WITH:
Mechelle Arbuzow, Executive Assistant

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
Members receive compensation in the amount of twenty dollars ($20.00) per month,
contingent upon attendance.

Attachments
Applications
Attendance









   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   12. c.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Submittal of Applications to the Board of Examiners of Contractors
Submitted For: Marc Meyers, Building Official, Building 

SUBJECT:
Submittal of Applications to the Board of Examiners of Contractors to fill one vacancy.

SUMMARY:
With Mr. Enns passing, we have a vacancy. Here are three (3) applications. Greg Oldakowski,
Lionel J. Dunbar and Joy S. Yancy. Per Section 5-19(a) of our Ordinance, the person appointed
will complete Mr. Enns's term expiring on February 28th, 2015

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES:
N/A

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Marc Meyers, Building Official

COORDINATED WITH:
Mechelle Arbuzow, Executive Assistant

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
Members receive no compensation

Attachments
Applications
Ordinance











   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   12. d.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Application Submittals - CBAA
Submitted For: Marc Meyers, Building Official, Building 

SUBJECT:
Submittal of Applications for reappointment to the Construction Board of Adjustments and
Appeals.

SUMMARY:
There are two (2) members whose terms expire on February 28, 2014. The applications for
re-appointment are for: James Matula and Ken Waters. Appointments will be for a four (4) year
term.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the City Commission accept all the applications.

ALTERNATIVES:
Deny application(s)

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Marc Meyers, Building Official

COORDINATED WITH:
Mechelle Arbuzow, Executive Assistant

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
Members receive no compensation.

Attachments
Applications
Attendance









   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   12. e.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: 2014 Boards and Committees
Submitted For: Linda Cox, City Clerk 

SUBJECT:
Ratification of 2014 Board and Committee appointments for Mayor and Commissioners

SUMMARY:
The attached listing of Board and Committee assignments is a follow up to conference agenda
discussions.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve 2014 Board and Committee Appointments

ALTERNATIVES:
n/a

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Linda W. Cox, City Clerk

COORDINATED WITH:
n/a

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
n/a

Attachments
2014 Appointments



2013 Boards and Committees 2014 Boards and Committees

Fort Pierce Harbor Advisory Committee Fort Pierce Harbor Advisory Committee
Fort Pierce Utilities Authority Fort Pierce Utilities Authority
SLC Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors SLC Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors
SLC Chamber of Commerce Fort Pierce Area SLC Chamber of Commerce Fort Pierce Area 
SLC Land Acquisition & Selection Committee SLC Land Acquisition & Selection Committee
Treasure Coast Council of Local Governments Treasure Coast Council of Local Governments
Treasure Coast Regional League of Cities Treasure Coast Regional League of Cities

Economic Development Council of SLC
Executive Roundtable of St. Lucie County
Transportation Planning Organization

Council on Aging of St. Lucie, Inc. Council on Aging of St. Lucie, Inc.
Florida League of Cities (Voting Delegates) Florida League of Cities (Voting Delegates)
St. Lucie County Fire District Board St. Lucie County Fire District Board
St. Lucie County Tourist Development Council St. Lucie County Tourist Development Council
Transportation Planning Organization (Alt.) Transportation Planning Organization (Alternate)

Main Street Fort Pierce Main Street Fort Pierce
St. Lucie Co. Fire District Board St. Lucie Co. Fire District Board

Transportation Planning Organization Transportation Planning Organization (Alternate)
SLC Land Acquisition & Selection Committee (Alt.)
Sunrise Theatre Advisory Board (Alternate)

City of Fort Pierce Retirement Board City of Fort Pierce Retirement Board
Executive Roundtable of St. Lucie County Executive Roundtable of St. Lucie County (Alt.)
FMEA-FMPA Liaison Committee FMEA-FMPA Liaison Committee
Lincoln Park Main Street Treasure Coast Education, Research, & 

Development Authority
SLC Land Acquisition & Selection Committee 
(Alternate)

Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council

Sunrise Theatre Advisory Board (Alternate)
Transportation Planning Organization
Treasure Coast Education, Research, & 
Development Authority
Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council

City of Fort Pierce Retirement Board City of Fort Pierce Retirement Board
Sunrise Theatre Advisory Board Sunrise Theatre Advisory Board
Transportation Planning Organization Transportation Planning Organization
Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council (Alt.) Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council (Alt.)

Lincoln Park Main Street

Mayor Hudson

Commissioner Alexander

Commissioner Becht

Commissioner Perona

Commissioner Sessions



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   12. f.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Housing Authority Board Appointment
Submitted For: Linda Cox, City Clerk, City Clerk 

SUBJECT:
Resolution 14-R01 re-appointing James H. Brown to the Housing Authority Board.

SUMMARY:
The Mayor is recommending the reappointment of James H. Brown to the Housing Authority
Board.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve re-appointment of James H. Brown

ALTERNATIVES:
Do not appoint James H. Brown

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Linda Cox, City Clerk

COORDINATED WITH:
n/a

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
n/a

 
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
n/a

Attachments



14-R01
Brown Attendance



RESOLUTION NO. 14-R01
     

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA, CERTIFYING THE MAYOR'S 
REAPPOINTMENT OF JAMES H. BROWN AS A 
COMMISSIONER OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY 
OF FORT PIERCE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT RESOLVED By the City Commission of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida, in 

regular session assembled, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 421, "Housing 

Authority Law", Florida Statutes, that the Mayor's reappointment of James H. Brown as 

a Commissioner of the Housing Authority of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida, be and the 

same is hereby approved; said term to commence upon adoption of this resolution, and 

to expire on February 2, 2018, or when her successor has been duly appointed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become effective upon 

adoption.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution has been duly adopted this 21st day of 

January, 2014.

________________________________
MAYOR COMMISSIONER

ATTEST:

______________________________ 
CITY CLERK

(CITY SEAL)



FPHA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING/ANNUAL RETREAT ATTENDANCE

JANUARY 2012 – DECEMBER 2013

2012 Attendance 12
-J

an

9-
F

eb

22
-M

ar

12
-A

p
r

24
-A

p
r 

B
o

ar
d

 
R

et
re

at

10
-M

ay

14
-J

u
n

12
-J

u
l

30
-A

u
g

13
-S

ep
t

11
-O

ct

8-
N

o
v

13
-D

ec

James Brown √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

2013 Attendance 10
-J

an

14
-F

eb

12
-M

ar

11
-A

p
r

30
-A

p
r 

B
o

ar
d

 
R

et
re

at

16
-M

ay

13
-J

u
n

11
-J

u
l

8-
A

u
g

12
-S

ep
t

10
-O

ct

14
-N

o
v

12
-D

ec

James Brown √ X √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

No 
Board 

Meeting

√  = Present
X = Absent



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   12. g.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Resolution 14-R02 Supporting Grant Application to Visit Florida
Submitted For: Libby Woodruff, Grant Writer, Urban Redevelopment 

SUBJECT:
Resolution 14-R02 Supporting Grant Application to Visit Florida to cover the design and printing
costs of tourism brochures.

SUMMARY:
Request for resolution in support of Visit Florida grant application to help cover the costs to
design and print tourism brochures that will be used to help  establish Fort Pierce as a tourism
destination.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Commission approve Resolution 14-R02, supporting the Visit
Florida grant application to help cover the costs to design and print tourism brochures and
direct the Mayor to execute Resolution 14-R02, the grant application and subsequent grant
award contractual agreement document, subject to the approval of the City Attorney as to the
grant contractual agreement's form and correctness.

ALTERNATIVES:
Do not apply for the grant.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Libby Woodruff, Grants Administrator

COORDINATED WITH:
Fort Pierce Authentic Tours (FPAT) Advisory Board

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
There is no fiscal impact.

 
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:



Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
There is no fiscal impact.

Attachments
Resolution 14-R02



RESOLUTION 14-R02

A RESOLUTON OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA, SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION OF A 
VISIT FLORIDA GRANT FOR THE DESIGN AND PRINTING OF 
TOURISM BROCHURES; PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in Resolution 11-09, dated February 22, 2011, the City Commission 
of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida supported eco/agri/nature tourism as a favored 
component of the City’s economic development strategy, and;

WHEREAS, at the April 18, 2011 regular meeting of the City Commission of the 
City of Fort Pierce, Florida,  support was expressed for the creation of the Fort Pierce 
Authentic Tours (FPAT) Program, and;

WHEREAS, the FPAT Program plays a significant role in creating and sustaining 
a flourishing eco/agri/nature tourism industry for the City of Fort Pierce, and;

WHEREAS, the City of Fort Pierce desires to apply for a Visit Florida Grant on 
behalf of the FPAT program to provide funding for the design and printing of tourism 
brochures that will help establish Fort Pierce as a tourism destination which will provide
an important stimulus for economic growth,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF FORT PIERCE, AS FOLLOWS:

The City Commission of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida, authorizes the City, its 
officials and respective city staff to apply for and accept a Visit Florida Grant for the 
purpose of funding the design and printing of tourism brochures on behalf of the City of 
Fort Pierce.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution has been duly adopted this 21st day of 
January, 2014.

_________________________________
Linda Hudson, Mayor Commissioner

_________________________________
Linda W. Cox, City Clerk

(CITY SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND CORRECTNESS:

_______________________________  
Robert V. Schwerer, City Attorney



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   12. h.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Grant Application to DPS-KAB for Park Recycle Bins
Submitted For: Libby Woodruff, Grant Writer, Urban Redevelopment 

SUBJECT:
Resolution 14-R03 Supporting Grant Application to Dr. Pepper Snapple Keep America Beautiful
(DPS-KAB) to provide recycling bins for City parks.

SUMMARY:
Request for resolution in support of DPS-KAB grant application to obtain recycle bins for City
parks which will provide park visitors greater access to recycling infrastructure.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Commission approve Resolution 14-R03, supporting
the DPS-KAB grant application to obtain recycle bins for City parks and direct the
Mayor to execute Resolution 14-R03 and the grant application and subsequent grant
award contractual agreement documents, subject to the approval of the City Attorney
as to the document’s form and correctness.

ALTERNATIVES:
Do not apply for the grant.

RESPONSIBLE STAFF:
Libby Woodruff, Grants Administrator

COORDINATED WITH:
Paul Bertram, Public Works

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Y/N:
Fiscal Year:
Account:
Amount:
OTHER INFORMATION:
None.

Attachments
14-R03



RESOLUTION 14-R03

A RESOLUTON OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA, SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION OF A 
DR. PEPPER SNAPPLE KEEP AMERICA BEAUTIFUL (DPS-KAB) 
RECYCLING BIN GRANT TO PROVIDE VISITORS GREATER 
ACCESS TO RECYCLING INFRASTRUCURE IN CITY PARKS; 
PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Fort Pierce is championing recycling operations that have 
spurred great community participation and increased recycling awareness; and

WHEREAS, recycling services are creating significant financial savings to the 
City, and;

WHEREAS, the DPS-KAB Recycling Bin grant provides an opportunity to help 
local, regional and state parks establish or expand recycling opportunities for visitors, 
and;

WHEREAS, the City of Fort Pierce desires to apply for a DPS-KAP Grant provide 
recycling bins in City parks, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF FORT PIERCE, AS FOLLOWS:

The City Commission of the City of Fort Pierce, Florida, authorizes the City, its 
officials and respective city staff to apply for and accept a DPS-KAP Grant for the 
purpose of obtaining recycle bins on behalf of the City of Fort Pierce.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution has been duly adopted this 21st day of 
January, 2014.

_________________________________
Linda Hudson, Mayor Commissioner

_________________________________
Linda W. Cox, City Clerk
(CITY SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND CORRECTNESS:

_______________________________  
Robert V. Schwerer, City Attorney



   
City Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Item #   13. a.           
Meeting Date: 01/21/2014  
Re: Department Activity Report
Submitted For: Robert Bradshaw, City Manager, City Manager 

SUBJECT:
Department Activity Report

Attachments
1/21/14 Activity Report



 

 
City of Fort Pierce, 100 North US 1, Fort Pierce, FL 34950 – 772.467.3000 

Interoffice Memorandum 
FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

CITY MANAGER

City Manager 
 
 The City Manager met with Commissioner Perona to discuss the agenda for the January 6, 2014 

City Commission meeting. 
 

 The Economic Development Team met with a potential developer on January 8, 2014. 
 

 The City Manager and Deputy City Manager met with the City Attorney, City Engineer, and Public 
Works Manager regarding the Savannas Recreation Trail. 

 
 The  Deputy  City Manager met  with  the  Code  Compliance Manager  regarding  animal  control 

issues. 
 

 The Deputy City Manager met with a  representative of ConEdison  for an update  regarding  the 
energy savings performance contract. 
 

 The Deputy City Manager attended the Communitywide Council Meeting on January 8, 2014. 
 

 The City Manager and Deputy City Manager met with  the Mayor weekly  to discuss current City 
issues. 

 
 The  Deputy  City  Manager  attended  the  Economic  Development  Council  Board  meeting  on 

January 9, 2014. 
 

 The City Manager and Planning Manager met with Cynthia Angelos and her client regarding the 
annexation of property. 

 
 The City Manager met with the City Engineer and Building Official regarding the recent flooding 

event. 
 

 The Deputy City Manager met with Urban Redevelopment staff to discuss departmental issues. 
 

 The Planning Manager and Deputy City Manager met with a potential developer on January  10, 
2014. 

 
 The City Manager held a Conference Agenda meeting on January 13, 2014. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission 
FROM:  Robert J. Bradshaw, City Manager 
RE:  Department Activity Report 
DATE:  January 15, 2014 
 
 
 
The information that follows is intended to keep the Commission abreast of the on‐going activities, 
issues, programs and services within the City.   
 

City Manager’s Office 
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 The Deputy City Manager held a CRA Advisory Committee meeting on January 13, 2014. 

 
 The City Manager met with the Planning Manager regarding the Okeechobee Road fuel station. 

 
 The City Manager met with the Code Compliance Manager regarding code enforcement issues. 

 
 The Deputy City Manager met with the Marina Manager to discuss a lease agreement. 

 
 The Deputy City Manager attended a Teamsters negotiation meeting. 

 
 The Deputy City Manager attended a Keep Fort Pierce Beautiful Board meeting on  January  14, 

2014. 
 

 The  City Manager,  Deputy  City Manager  and  Finance  Director met  with  the  Sunrise  Theatre 
Director regarding the departmental quarterly financial report. 
 

 The City Manager and Deputy City Manager met with representatives of the Boys and Girls Club to 
discuss a lease agreement. 

 
 The Deputy City Manager met with a representative of the Palm Beach County Urban League to 

discuss a potential partnership with the City of Fort Pierce. 
 

 The City Manager met with the City Attorney to discuss pending litigation/active cases for the first 
quarter of 2014. 
 

 The Deputy City Manager attended a meeting at the County regarding the Port Master Plan. 
 

 The Deputy City Manager and City Engineer meet with representatives from the Treasure Coast 
Regional Planning Council, Cardno and the FPUA regarding construction financing strategy for the 
King plant site. 

 
 The City Manager met with the City Clerk and MIS Director regarding the  implementation of the 

new paperless agenda process for the February 3, 2014 City Commission meeting. 
 

 

City Manager’s Office contd. 
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 Gave assistance and answered questions to the walk‐in public on various aspects of Business Tax 
Receipts which included but not limited to: 
 

New Applications:  15  Renewals:  78  Transfers:  2 
 

 Gave assistance and answered questions to the walk‐in contractors on various aspects of 
Contractor’s Licensing which included but not limited to: 
 

New Applications:  5  Renewals:  9 
 

 Gave assistance and answered questions from the public who have contacted office by 
telephone. 
 

 Gave assistance and answered questions received by the public via e‐mail through the City’s web‐
page. 
 

 Assisted the public by researching and providing copies of various requested public records. 
 

 Assisted the public, various departments, newspaper and other government entities by providing 
DVD copies of various commission meetings. 
 

 Assisted public by processing and providing receipt for animal registrations payment. 
 

 Assisted Code Compliance Manager by processing payment and providing a receipt for check 
received from Acacia Animal Clinic for animal registrations. 
 

 Reviewed all necessary paperwork for completeness submitted by contractors to go before the 
Board of Examiners of Contractors at the meeting to be held on January 14, 2014. 
   

 Preparation of legal advertisements, letters, resolutions, & ordinances for various departments 
for upcoming   City Commission agenda items. 
 

 Preparation of several Proclamations. 
 

 Attended, recorded and transcribed minutes of the Fort Pierce City Commission Meeting held on 
January 6, 2014. 
 

 License/Permit Clerks contacting businesses who did not renew Business Tax by September 30, 
2013 to inquire if still in business and notify that Business Tax has expired and must be renewed. 
  

 Revenue Recovery working with Code Enforcement personnel on new businesses within the city 
limits that have not applied for a Business Tax Receipt. 
 

 Licensing/Permit Clerks and Licensing Specialist/Deputy City Clerk working on revenue recovery 
project by checking list obtained from Fort Pierce Utilities of commercial utility customers to 
make sure have Business Tax Receipt for the City.  
 

 Licensing/Permit Clerk working with Building Department Permit Specialist to contact business 
tax applicants to set up appointments for building inspections and other issues associated with a 
business tax application. 
 

 Daily balancing process of cash receipts and submittal to Finance Department for bank deposit. 
 

 On‐going implementation of computerization of deed, alleyway and right‐of‐way records. 
 

 On‐going implementation of computerization of annexation records. 
 

 On‐going implementation of scanning City Commission Agenda Packets onto DVD’s. 

 

City Clerk’s Office 
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 On‐going implementation of scanning City Commission Meeting minutes, ordinances, resolutions, 
and the Fort Pierce Redevelopment Meeting minutes into the Optiview system. 
 

 Assisting MIS Department in correcting and adding unit numbers to existing address data base. 
 

 Preparation and delivering to St Lucie County Courthouse recording division various paperwork to 
be recorded.     
   

 Assisting Finance Department by signing and affixing the City Seal to necessary paperwork 
associated with release of liens. 

 
 Assisting Planning Department personnel answering questions pertaining to business tax 

applications. 
 

 Assisted Planning Department personnel by researching and providing copies of various 
ordinances, rezoning, conditional uses and annexations. 
 

 Assisted Planning Department personnel by researching and providing the cost for legal 
advertising of various projects they are processing. 
 

 Assisted City Attorney Office by doing research on various city issues.   
 

 License Permit Specialist/Deputy City Clerk working on an on‐going record retention projects.  
 

 On‐going implementation of updating various forms and having them accessible through the City 
of Fort Pierce website. 
 

 License/Permit Clerk Joyce Kobbe assisted the Risk Manager by working the sign‐in desk at the 
City of Fort Pierce 3rd Annual Employee Health Fair held on January 8, 2014 at the Riverwalk 
Center. 
 

 Deputy City Clerk/License/Permit Specialist and Executive Assistant Angela Wilkinson attended 
training session held on January 7, 2014 for AgendaQuick. 
 

 City Clerk attended Agenda Quick training sessions. 
 

 City Clerk notified City Departments of expiring Board/Committee terms. 
 

 City Clerk attended Leadership St. Lucie Orientation. 
 

 City Clerk attended Economic Development Team meeting. 
 

 City Clerk met with Village of Tequesta Clerk. 

 

City Clerk’s Office contd. 
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 Procurement –  
1. Opened Bid No. 2014‐007 ~Janitorial Services for City Owned Buildings (River Walk Center, 

Garden Club and Maravilla Center).  
2. Renewal of Annual Contracts 
3. Processed purchase orders and fiscal year blanket purchase orders. 
4. Processing and/or completion of awards to vendors/contractors approved by Commission. 
5. Meetings: 

a) Director of Administrative Services and Purchasing Manager met with City Engineer 
regarding Bid No. 2014‐002 ~ Heathcote Botanical Park Project. 

b) Purchasing Staff attended the Agenda Quick Training conducted by MIS Department and 
City Clerk Office. 

c) Director of Administrative Services conducted several meetings with various City staff 
regarding personnel issues.  

 

 Human Resources – 
1. Coordinated Pre‐employment physicals and background checks. 
2. Completed several Public Records requests. 
3. Advertised Promotional/Employment Opportunities. 
4. Created several Personnel Action forms for employees. 
5. Distributed monthly Reports to each department such as Accrual Register, Time Sheets and 

payroll register to Police Department. 
6. Processed Purchase Orders and requisitions.  
7. Verified payroll. 
8. Processed December, 2013 and January, 2014 employee annual evaluations. 
9. Completed Verification of Employment/Loss of Income forms. 

 

 Risk Management –  
1. Conducted 3rd Annual Health Fair, January 8, 2014. 
2. Accident and Injury Reviews. 
3. Quarterly Risk Management Meeting, January 8, 2014. 
4. Audited, Closed, and Processed WC Claims. 
5. Processed Insurance Subrogation. 
6. Consulted with the City Carrier Regarding Liability Claims. 
7. Processed day to day Risk Management Duties. 

 

Administrative Services Department 
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 Preparing Financials for Audit 

 Attended AgendaQuick training. 

 Attended a meeting regarding Sunrise Theatre’s budget. 

 Day to Day Operations 

 Swagit AgendaQuick training for Department Heads and staff has been completed and 

production site opened to staff. 

 Several locations were affected by lightning strikes and we worked with our cabling vendor for re‐

cabling at those locations.  Ninety percent of services have been restored.   

 Awaiting arrival of new equipment for Commission Broadcasting Room. 

 Working on new servers, racks and Intune software citywide. 

 Evaluation of AirWatch mobile device management (MDM) application complete with purchase 

and working on citywide installation.  

 Working with Comcast for moving to the new room in the Commission Chambers to house the 

Broadcasting equipment. 

 Exploring cloud based options for different applications. 

 Processing new computer equipment for various departments. 

 Working on a pilot program with the Police Department.  

 Relocation of several divisions (on‐going). 

 Upgrading Marina Program. 

 Working with vendor Group Business Software and the migration has is fifty percent complete to 

move Lotus Notes to the cloud.  

 Working on Rights issue with NAS (on‐going). 

 Installation of the AppAssure Backup and Replication software to be loaded on the City’s 

application server. 

 Processing VOIP spread sheets for remaining remote sites (Marina and Sunrise Theatre) and 

gathering all information required including old numbers to be ported.   

 Marina data room is currently being upgraded to handle a new data rack, servers. Transferring 

data to the new NAS device (on‐going). 

 Shelter Pro software roll out for Animal Control Officers to be loaded on City’s application server. 

 Major problems with email due to virus attacks to our system (on‐going).  

 Servers for Sunrise Theatre and Indian Hills crashed; servers are being processed for distribution. 

 Testing iPads for use in current environment (Lotus Notes email, and Click2Gov Building permits) 

and the GPS system. 

 Software integrations citywide (on‐going).       

 Working with AT&T and State of Florida on the fiber optic installation preparation for Public 

Works/Solid Waste (ongoing). 

 Lotus Notes IQsuite e‐mail spam, and archiving (ongoing).  

 Updating MIS documentation and procedural policies (on‐going). 

 Received eighty two (82) new work orders and completed fifty eight (58) work orders.   

 

Finance Department 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MIS Department 
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 Administrative/Meetings –   
1. All Staff members conducted ‘Planner of the Day’ duties on a rotating basis. 
2. Walk‐ins/Call‐ins. 
3. Planning Board minutes for 12‐10‐2013 
4. Zoning Verification Letters for 1182 Binney Drive and 4591 Whispering Pines Lane 
5. Pre‐application meeting for Mayfair at Lawnwood PUD – Redevelopment proposal 
6. All of Planning Staff completed training for new paperless agenda software (AgendaQuick). 

 

 Comprehensive Planning – 
1. East side of South 25th Street between Ormond Avenue and Mississippi Avenue – Fort Pierce 

Family Dollar, Future Land Use Map Amendment – Local Planning Agency (Planning Board) 
Agenda Item 

2. East side of South 25th Street between Ormond Avenue and Mississippi Avenue – Fort Pierce 
Family Dollar, Zoning Atlas Amendment (Rezoning) –Planning Board Agenda Item 
 

 Development Review –  
1. 700 S 29th Street ‐ Abbie Jean Russell ‐ Site Work/Generator Installation 
2. 2050 S US HWY 1 ‐ Checkers ‐ Redevelopment Site Inspections 

 

 GIS/Mapping – 
1. GIS/Annexation agreement verification, input December 2013 
2. GIS/Annexed properties input 81 parcels, revision/update to city zoning map, city limits map, 

annexation agreement map; 
3. Research/analysis regarding CRA data, inter‐governmental coordination with SLC Property 

Appraiser, SLC Tax Collector; 
4. Web edits/updates 

 

 Historic Preservation – 
1. 131 N 2nd Street ‐ Appeal of COA ‐ City Commission 
2. 104 N 2nd Street ‐ COA ‐ New Tenant/Signs 
3. 517 S 8th Street ‐ COA ‐ Garage Demo/Reconstruction 
4. 419 N 2nd Street ‐ Building Permit ‐ Rehabilitation 

 

Planning Department 
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 7131 Okeechobee Rd (West Star) – This permit is under review, we will continue to keep you 
informed of the progress of this project. 
 

 6120 Glades Cut Off Road (St. Lucie Recyclables) – Drawings have been submitted project. We will 
keep you informed of their progress. 
 

 5001 Okeechobee Rd (Center State Bank) – The building permit for this project has been issued. 
We will keep you informed of the progress of this project. 
 

 4400 S. US Hwy 1 (Acura Dealership) – Plans were submitted for the construction of a new Acura 
dealership at the above stated address.  We will keep you informed of the progress of this 
project. 

  Hearings  –   
1. Code Enforcement Board 

a) 5 violation hearings 
‐ continued by staff prior to hearing 
‐ 4 found in violation 

b) 2 reduction requests 
‐ lien requests approved by Board and forwarded to Commission for final approval 

2. County Court – Judge Barnes 
a) COFP v. Drinkwater Allen Matthew: Failure to restrain – guilty – fined $50 plus $5 

surcharge and all court costs 
b) COFP v. Kayla Marie Smith: Running at large – dismissed by Judge 
c) COFP v. Thomas Christian 

‐ Registration tags required – guilty – fined $50 plus $5 surcharge 
‐ Rabies required – guilty – fined $100 plus $5 surcharge and all court costs 
‐ Public Nuisance – guilty – fined $50 plus $5 surcharge 
‐ Running at large – guilty – fined $50 plus $5 surcharge 
‐ Failure to restrain – guilty – fined $50 plus $5 surcharge 

d) COFP v. Maria Eugenia Clavijo‐Valez 
‐ Animal Abuse / Cruelty / Neglect – continued by Judge to 3/28/2014 
‐ City registration required – continued by Judge to 3/28/2014 

 Code Enforcement –   
1. Received 27 complaints 
2. Issued 3 written warnings 
3. Issued 1 citations 
4. Initiated 36 new cases: 30 general violations and 6 lot clearing violations 
5. Conducted 107 follow‐up inspections 
6. Closed 43 cases 

 Animal Control –   
1. Responded to 170 dispatched calls  
2. Conducted 151 self‐initiated calls 
3. Conducted 44 follow‐up investigations 
4. Issued 12 citations and 12 written warnings 
5. Completed 5 bite reports 

 

 

Building Division 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Code Enforcement Division 
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  Income & Expenses –  
1. Processed 40 lien / title search requests. 
2. We continue to receive excess revenue from tax sale properties. We have received 52% of our 

annually budgeted income in Q1 of FY14. 
3. All lien & fine case folders are being manually reviewed and updated to address past due 

accounts (on‐going). 

 Miscellaneous –  
1. Met with Mr. Bradshaw and Jennifer Robinson to discuss the complaint from Ms. Ursula 

Freeman  
2. Met with Nick Mimms to discuss the Humane Society contract and lease. 
3. All ACO division staff members met with Mayor Hudson to discuss activities and complaints 

from volunteers. 
4. Attended training on the agenda software. 
5. Animal Control has declared two dogs dangerous. Both dogs are impounded at the Humane 

Society until upcoming court hearing on Jan. 22nd. FPPD assisted in this matter including  
6. Attended the City’s Health Fair. 
7. Preparing for new hires Isaac Saucedo and Terry Denmark. Both new code officers will start 

work on 01/21/2014. 
 

 

Code Enforcement Division contd. 
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 Development Reviews – Intake of six (6) Building Permit, Site Plan, or Certificate of Occupancy 
reviews. 

 Stormwater Division – Negotiations being made with FPUA in regards to a joint project for 
Boston Avenue between 7th Street and 8th Street.  FPUA desires to replace water and sewer in 
this portion of Boston Avenue.  SMU division is investigating the feasibility of partnering with the 
FPUA to construct needed drainage improvement in this block.  Currently developing preliminary 
engineering design and cost estimates.  Accessing the effects of the 1‐09‐14 flooding on the City’s 
infrastructure.   

 Traffic Control –   FDOT has completed final QA/QC for the new coordination plans on State 
Corridors. Staff is working with FDOT’s contractor to revise the signal timing plans for SR 70 and 
25th Street as we have discovered a significant increase in traffic volumes since the incorporation 
of the current timings. City continues maintenance of all signals.  

 City Marina Reconstruction ‐ Phase I – Islands‐ LMAC is at 99% for project completion.  LMAC is 
completing the final construction items need to make substantial completion. Staff continues 
working with LMAC to resolve potential contractual issues and perceived monetary claims. Staff 
has initiated dialog with FDEP and Army Corps to help resolve an issue that LMAC has created 
with installation of non‐conforming material on 6 Islands. 

 City Marina Reconstruction – Phase II – Docks – RFP 2013‐021 City Marina Reconstruction‐ Phase II 
Staff has completed RFP 2013‐021 contract documents in preparation of contract negotiations for 
the construction phase of the floating docks. City Attorney is reviewing the revised contract 
documents, staff is currently working towards presenting the finalized contact on the January 20, 
2014 Commission agenda for approval.  

 S. 21st Street / Havana Ave. Sidewalk Project – Project currently under design.  Funding has been 
approved by FDOT for FY 2015.  90% plans have been submitted to the City and FDOT for review. 

 31st Street Sidewalks from Okeechobee Road to Tennessee Avenue – FDOT approval to proceed 
with construction has been obtained.  The construction bid documents have been sent to the City 
Attorney’s office for review. 

 5th Street Reconstruction from Orange Avenue to Boston Avenue – Construction underway.  
Final completion is scheduled for April 2014. 

 Heathcote Stormwater Improvements – Bids opened on 12/19.  Four bid proposals received.  
Engineering is currently reviewing bid proposals.  

 Veterans Memorial Park – Project currently under design. 

 Melody Lane Fishing Pier – Awaiting receipt of design consultant’s proposal. 

 H.D. King Power Plant Clean‐up – During soil remediation work at the former power plant site, it 
was discovered that the tie‐backs for the seawall along Moore’s Creek in some areas have 
completely deteriorated.  One section of the seawall has shown significant deflection.  We have 
requested a structural engineer to provide the City with a proposal for further evaluation of the 
seawall and recommended repair alternatives.  Expect proposal to be submitted by the second 
week of January.   

 

Engineering Department  
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 Energy Efficiency & Conservation – ConEdison has completed the Investment Grade Energy Audit 
and is currently working with the Energy Efficiency & Conservation Team (EECT) to determine 
feasible energy conservation measures for inclusion in the much anticipated energy savings 
performance contract.  A presentation to the commission is expected in the very near future. 
 

 Single Stream Recycling – Interest and participation in our program continues to grow! Phase II 
of our Single Stream Program is complete. The PWD will be implementing a recycling program at 
the FPUA offices within the next two weeks.  
 

 Phase II Window Retrofit Project – The River Walk windows and doors are complete and look 
fantastic. Work has begun at the PWD compound and once completed the contractor will be 
going to the Police Department.  

 

 Storm Response – The police department worked with public works and other emergency 
response entities in the wake of unexpected flooding from rain on January 9, 2013.  The storm 
caused flooding damage to several structures, vehicles, and roadways throughout the city.  Indian 
River Drive suffered damage to the embankment within the city limits and part of the roadway 
collapsed further south.  The police department’s new MRAP vehicle was used to rescue 40‐50 
people that were stranded in flooded vehicles and houses throughout the city.  There were no 
significant storm related injuries or deaths. 
 

 Restoring our Village – Chief Baldwin is working with the Health Department to host a 
presentation by representatives from Louisville on the strategy that they are using to address 
violence as a public health issue.  This presentation is scheduled for January 17, 9 AM, at the 
Health Department on Milner Rd.   

 

 Noise Ordinance – On January 7, Lt. Curry staged a sound level demonstration that was attended 
by residents of the Edgartown Community.  The draft ordinance is pending review by the City 
Attorney’s office.  

 

 Saggy Pants Ordinance ‐ On December 2, 2013, a package of material was submitted through the 
City Manager to the City Attorney for review in crafting an ordinance for Fort Pierce.  

  

 Entertainment District (Jetty) ‐ On January 7, Chief Baldwin and Planning Manager Rebecca 
Grohall met with representatives from businesses in this area.  Additional input is need from the 
Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco, and we are scheduling additional meeting for this 
purpose.  

 

Public Works Department 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Police Department 
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 Grants Administrator –  
1. Coordinated CWC and FPAT meetings (newspaper advertisements, support materials, etc.) 
2. Met w/IRSC on Highwaymen Trail signs and website 
3. Provided oversight and attended meetings with Engineering and Architects on Melody Lane 

Pier (FIND grant oversight) 
4. Created PowerPoint on Highwaymen Trail project for City Commission 
5. Provided oversight for Community Garden implementation 
6. Provided grant management for FPAT grant awards 
7. Met with Mayor Hudson and presented Highwaymen project overview 
8. Began preparation to write grant applications to Visit Florida and the Florida Inland 

Navigation District 
9. Provided oversight for Communitywide Council meeting / Scoring PSA grant applications 
10. Provided oversight for FPAT Advisory Board meeting 
11. Attended Health Fair 
12. Attended AgendaQuick Training 
13. Created backup materials for five City Commission agenda items 
14. Assisted Purchasing with FPRA property issues 

 

 Program Analyst – 
1. FEMA 

a) Marina Project 
‐ Waiting on time extensions for project worksheets 9399 and 438, both Marina related 
‐ Monitoring funding requests 

2. Windows Expansion Project 
a) Returned signed period of performance extension and waiting for fully executed copy 
b) Working on request for modification of scope of work  
c) Preparing first draw down request 
a) NSP:   Working on insurance amendment for transfer agreement 

3. Enterprise Zone 
a) Answering emails and phone calls pertaining to tax credits 
b) Preparing quarterly reports 

4. SHIP:   Preparing 2 applicants for program 
 

 

Urban Redevelopment Department 
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 New windows and doors are completed.  Public Works is reinstalling blinds.   Public Works will 
start renovating Pierce Hall to enlarge to have more capacity.  Will need to purchase 
additional/replacement chairs.  Programming attendance is increasing due to season. 

 Inspected the golf course with the Superintendent to access any damage from the heavy rains. 
 

 Submitted quarterly water report to South Florida Water Management. 

 Oversee daily operations for City Marina and Fisherman's Wharf Marina. 

 Working with seasonal dockage and events (see weekly email "Marina Happenings" newsletter 
for updates). 

 Marina Island Construction estimated completion unknown. 

 Consulting on Marina Project. 

 Commission approved the rights to negotiate with Bellingham Marine for the new dock system at 
the City Marina.  City Attorney and Engineering Dept. working out contract language. 

 Attended first meeting of Waterway Steering committee for Martin and St. Lucie Counties. 

 Working with marina staff and MIS department relating to the new marina operating program. 

 Dredging time frame of Moore's Creek is undetermined.  Awaiting Engineering Dept. for date 
certain. 

 Upgrading camera security system throughout marina facility. 

 Working with St. Lucie County Tourism Department on the contract for 3 web cams. 

 Working with City staff on installing a Seacoast National Bank ATM machine at City Marina. 
 

 

Marina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Golf Course 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
River Walk Center 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
   

Park Permits  550.00 
Programming  395.32 
River Walk Center  299.82 
Special Events  400.00 
Maravilla  100.00 

Total  $1,745.14 
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 Over the past weeks, the following performances and activities were presented in the Sunrise & 
Black Box Theatre:  Comedy Corner Improv on Saturday, December 28; Two Holiday Movies at 
11am and 2pm were shown free of charge as a Community Holiday Outreach event on December 
23.  Performances on the Sunrise Theatre main stage included the State Ballet Theatre of Russia 
performed The Nutcracker on December 26; Jack Hanna delighted a full house with his exotic 
animals on December 29; Neil Sedaka performed to a sell‐out crowd on January 3. 
 

 Assistance continues with future rental events and co‐presentations with various community 
groups including, but not limited to:  BlueBird Educational Productions Selwyn Birchwood on 
February 7; Chris MacDonald’s Memories of Elvis on January 18.  A March 15 booking for Ron 
White went on sale December 2 and sold‐out within one week. A second show was added and is 
also approaching sell‐out.  A third Ron White date was confirmed January 3.  

 

 New shows that have been added to the schedule include Tom Jackson Band performing in the 
Black Box on January 17 and Bill Cosby on March 18. 

 

 Marketing and show sponsorship negotiations for the 2013/14 Season are ongoing.  Booking 
negotiations and event commitments for the 2013/14 Season continue. 

 

 Budget projections and adjustments for this and next year’s fiscal year continue to be reviewed 
and implemented. 

 

 

Sunrise Theatre 
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